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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Glory
Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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| CHARMAN'S EEHeE
STATEMENT

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Glory Flame Holdings (the “Company”), | am honoured to
present this annual report of the consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (“FY2022” or the
“Reporting Period”).

PERFORMANCE

The Group posted a revenue of approximately HK$118.5 million
for FY2022, representing an increase by 19.7% as compared to
approximately HK$99.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 (“FY2021”).

The Group’s revenue attributable to concrete demolition services
increased by 23.7% from approximately HK$56.1 million for
FY2021 to approximately HK$69.4 million for FY2022. The
Group’s revenue attributable to prefabricated construction
increased by 15.0% from approximately HK$42.8 million for
FY2021 to approximately HK$49.2 million for FY2022.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$2.7 million
for FY2022, representing a decrease by 92.7% as compared to a
net loss of approximately HK$37.2 million for FY2021. Basic loss
per share for FY2022 was HK1.02 cents, as compared to HK3.65
cents for FY2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

After three years of Covid-19 pandemic disrupted social and
business activities and cross-border business that dealt a heavy
blow to Hong Kong economy, the Company saw the light to the
end of the tunnel when Hong Kong relaxed the pandemic control
measures and travel restriction. The Company was pinning its
hopes on reopening cross-border of China to revitalize Hong
Kong economy. The Company believes that Hong Kong would
gradually return to normal with the lifting of most Covid-19 related
restrictions and improved market sentiment. During FY2022, the
Group’s revenue from concrete demolition services business grew
by 23.7% due to Hong Kong’s post-pandemic rebound. In 2022,
Hong Kong government planned to create more land, expand
the railway and road infrastructure network and invest in housing
and recreational projects under Northern Metropolis Development
Strategy and Lantau Tomorrow Vision. The Company was
confident in its strong competitiveness in the construction
demoalition industry.
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The Group’s prefabricated construction business in China
continued to make a stride to grow amid the Covid-19 pandemic
and geopolitical tensions. The Company believes that China
economy will pose a robust improvement and hard-won
growth. Revenue from the Group’s prefabricated construction
business recorded double digit growth in two years in a row
and accounted for the growth by 15.0% for FY2022. During
year 2022, many property developers in China have postponed
and slowed their pace of construction projects due to liquidity
problems and struggle through tough times amid an industry
downturn. However, following China have loosed the reins on
property developer’s financing channel, China’s property market
demonstrated its resilience and improvement. The Company
believes that enormous potential demand will be generated in
the process of urbanization. The Company continues to have a
positive outlook on the prefabricated construction business over
long term.

The Group devotes to promote the green building. Prefabricated
construction is not only green but also be more efficient and
even higher quality. The Company has plans to develop and
tap the prefabricated construction business into overseas
market, particularly for the countries along the Belt and Road.
As prefabricated construction business for overseas market is
new to the Group, the Group intends to look for an experienced
construction company to form a partnership and share the
experience for new business in the overseas market. The Group
believes that the market diversification may usher in a strong
growth potential of the Group in long run. However, many
countries still need to take more time to revive its economy and
the Company felt difficult to source fund for the new projects due
to the market liquidity tightness in China and Hong Kong. The
market diversification plan was on the shelf for the time being.
The Company will review this strategy from time to time and keep
close watch on the development of the situation.
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT
ERHmE

We will continue to adhere to our core philosophy of “Building
a Green World” and the ideology of “green building and green
life” with quality, innovation and effectiveness and achieve our
expansion of the Group’s business with a view to optimizing
stakeholders’ interests and maximizing their value.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our Directors, our experienced management team, our
dedicated employees, and our professional legal and accounting
teams for their wavering support and commitment. We would also
like to express appreciation for the continuing support and trust of
our shareholders, clients, suppliers and government authorities.

Liu Yingjie
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT

BIEE R wm T

DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. For
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”), the
Group mainly engages in provision of concrete demolition services
and manufacturing and trading of prefabricated construction
components.

Concrete demolition services

Concrete demolition is one aspect of the construction industry in
Hong Kong. The Group’s concrete demolition services were mainly
concerned with the removal of pieces or section of concrete from
concrete structures by applying a variety of methods, such as
core drilling, sawing, bursting and crushing. Concrete demolition
services are usually performed by subcontractors in (i) general
building works, especially for alteration and redevelopment
projects; and (i) civil engineering works. Concrete demolition work
can be applied in various situations, such as the construction of
underground utilities, creation of openings for elevator, door, and
window installation, redevelopment of buildings, roads, tunnels
and underground facilities, removal of concrete during building
construction and the preparation of road surfaces.

The customers of the Group’s concrete demolition services mainly
include main contractors and subcontractors of different types
of construction and civil engineering projects in Hong Kong.
Such customers can generally be categorized into public sector
projects’ customers and private sector projects’ customers. Public
sector projects refer to projects of which the main contractors
are employed by Government departments or statutory bodies in
Hong Kong, while private sector projects refer to projects that are
not public sector projects.
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Prefabricated construction

Prefabricated construction is a new kind of architecture with
the construction process that is splitting the traditional building
products into precast reinforced concrete member produced in
the factory and transported to the construction site for assembling
into a whole building. Precast concrete contributes to green
building practices as it can be very durable and energy efficient.
Prefabricated Construction also reduces construction waste and
debris on construction site as the precast concrete components
are factory-made and employed by exact-batching technologies.

Prefabricated Constructions are becoming more popular in many
developing countries, due to compressed project timelines, more
affordable pricing, greener construction technology and the
ability to service remote locations. Growth in urbanization and
industrialization drive the demand in affordable urban housing that
was built in a shorter construction time. The Group established
its own production facilities and construction project team in
Huizhou, the PRC for production, research and development of
precast concrete components and glass fiber reinforced cement
components, product installation guidance and sales which mainly
serviced the construction projects in Greater Bay area of China
and Hong Kong.

8 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EEZERBRAT

KEAEE

REABERBESRREEERD TR IR
E%Wﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁi%ﬁlk%ﬁhlﬁ
GHRKTEREN B RERR -
BUR R T IEE A K Ege - ﬁ%%ﬁ@@%
T - mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi%#E#IW$Fﬁ
KABHEA BRI - RENEEITR D iE
TIRGEEREN IR R LB o

HRIEARERE  BREEE  BERM
FIRRUARAARREMRIEMHRRE 8

KRR EZEEFZERPERERER
TeWMmEMIE N EREDRERASE
EORBEETERNFER -  REERFE
BMNEIZBCMEERENEEERBEK
A B B RS R TR RURE T A R
HEitor R LA  EMTEEERIHE -
FERBRPENERR REBNEEER -



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue increased by approximately HK$19.5 million or 19.7%
from approximately HK$99.0 million for FY2021 to approximately
HK$118.5 million for the Reporting Period. The analysis of revenue
was shown as follows:
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Revenue from
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Concrete demolition services

For the Reporting Period, revenue attributable to concrete
demolition services was approximately HK$69.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$13.3 million
or 23.7% as compared with approximately HK$56.1 million
for FY2021. The increase was primarily due to an increase of
approximately HK$10.9 million in contract revenue from public
sector projects, resulting from a rebound of construction demand
and the backlog of the work affected by Covid-19 pandemic in
previous years.

Prefabricated construction

For the Reporting Period, revenue attributable to prefabricated
construction was approximately HK$49.2 million, representing an
increase of approximately HK$6.4 million or 15.0% as compared
with approximately HK$42.8 million for FY2021. The increase
was primarily due to the increase was primarily due to an increase
in delivery of modular prefabrication units for picking up the
construction progress in the last quarter 2022, resulting from
the ease of pandemic control and improvement of the financial
channel for the property developers.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit increased by approximately HK$10.8 million or 43.9%
from approximately HK$24.6 million for FY2021 to approximately
HK$35.4 million for the Reporting Period.

Gross profit margin increased from 24.9% for FY2021 to 29.9%
for the Reporting Period. The increase was primarily due to
an increase by 5.9 percentage points in gross profit margin
attributable to concrete demolition services from 26.1% for
FY2021 to 32.0% for the Reporting Period.

Other Income and Other Gains, Net

Other income and other gains, net, increased by approximately
HK$6.6 million from approximately HK$1.9 million for FY2021
to approximately HK$8.5 million for the Reporting Period. The
increase was primarily due to the combined effect of (i) a gain of
HK$5.8 million on reversal of impairment loss in respect of the
recovery of certain long outstanding other receivable that had
been fully impaired in year 2019; (i) a loss of HK$1.2 million on
deregistration of subsidiaries which had ceased their businesses
in trading of clean coal in Inner Mongolia in year 2019 and (i) a
government grant of HK$1.9 million received during FY2022.

Impairment losses on various assets

Impairment losses on various assets decreased by HK$17.3
million from approximately HK$21.9 million for FY2021 to
approximately HK$4.6 million for the Reporting Period. The
decrease was primarily due to a combined effect of (i) a decrease
of HK$21.3 million in impairment loss on other receivable in
connection with prefabricated construction projects led by a
supplier who was one of the Group’s cooperative partners in the
overseas prefabricated construction business and (ii) an increase
of HK$4.0 million in impairment loss on trade receivables, primarily
due to an increase in total amount of past due invoices on trade
receivable resulting from the delay of the construction projects
amid the Covid-19 pandemic.
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Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses decreased by
approximately HK$0.4 million from approximately HK$36.3 million
for FY2021 to approximately HK$35.9 million for the Reporting
Period. Such decrease was primarily due to (i) a decrease of
approximately HK$0.4 million in consultancy fee.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

After a result of the foregoing, the Group’s loss attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$10.3 million for
the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$26.5 million as compared to a loss of HK$36.8 million
attributable to owners of the Company for FY2021.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and bank deposits
of approximately HK$36.3 million (2021: approximately HK$37.1
million).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 (defined
as total borrowings including interest bearing and non-interest
bearing, divided by the Group’s total equity) is not applicable due
to negative total equity of the Group (2021: approximately 18.9).

Treasury Policy

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the Reporting Period. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments
can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

FREHHRAM

TBRAMEER

THREEMEERTHFBRFEE - —FHNH
36,300,000 7 7T & 1 47 400,000 7 7T & R &
HA#) 49.35,900,000 8 7T » iR L EEZE A ()
A E R 49 400,000 B TTATEL ©

AABHEEANELESE

HRLMRE RFEHRN AQa#EE
A FE 15 B 18 49 /10,300,000 7T © & B
BEE-_—FHAQAHAE ARGEED
36,800,000 & JT i L # 26,500,000 78 7T °

RBEE  MHRERRELRGSE

RZEBE-_—_F+-A=+—H KAEBEFR
% &R 1717 74 36,300,000/8 7T (ZE=—
£ : 4937,100,0007T) °

R-EBE-_—F+-F=+—0 AEEHNE
EAELE (TEABERE (BIEFTER
TEHB) BRUAREERZRRE) WIHEA -
AAEENAEZAEE (ZE—F 4
18.9) °

ERBER

AEBEEHEBEHRRRERBENYEE IR
T MAERERE BREREFIBROR
BESWN - REBB B BETHENE
BiHE MFHEEEPONMBHRRAREEE
R REERBESRER  EFSTUE
BAEBHRBESHN - UERETEEE
E - BENMEMEAENRBESRER RN

s > >
HaRETERK -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % #

11



12

 MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

EIRE R am M

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations
from various currencies, such as United States dollars and
Chinese Renminbi. Since Hong Kong dollars remains pegged
to the United States dollars within a defined range, the Group
is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange risk against
the United States dollars. The Group has certain subsidiaries
operating in mainland China, in which most of their transactions,
including revenue, expenses and other financing activities, are
denominated in Chinese Renminbi. The Group is not exposed
to any significant foreign exchange transaction risk in relation to
these currencies and had not entered into any foreign exchange
contract as hedging measures against these currencies.

Significant Investment Held

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no material
investment held by the Group.

Debts and Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the total borrowings of the Group,
including unsecured fixed bonds and other loan, amounted to
approximately HK$76.2 million (2021: approximately HK$64.3
million). The annual interest rates of the borrowings during the
Reporting Period ranged from 4.2% to 12.0% per annum (2021:
6.75% to 12.0% per annum). All of the borrowings are unsecured
and denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Chinese Renminbi.
The borrowings of HK$46.9 million were repayable within one year
which was accounted for as current liabilities of the Group and
the borrowings of HK$29.3 million were repayable over one year
which was accounted for as non-current liabilities.

Capital Commitments

The Group does not have material capital commitments as at 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Future plans for material investment or capital
assets

Save as disclosed in the annual report, the Group does not have
any other specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2022.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 98 staff (2021:
124 staff). Total employee costs for the Reporting Period including
directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$41.0
million (2021: approximately HK$41.2 million).

The salary and benefit levels of the employees of the Group are
competitive. This is very important as the construction industry
has been experiencing labour shortage in general. Individual
performance of our employees is rewarded through the Group’s
salary and bonus system. In addition, the Group provides
adequate job training to employees in order to equip them with
practical knowledge and skills to tackle situations and challenges
encountered in diverse work sites.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend to
Shareholders for the Reporting Period (2021: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Yingjie, aged 54, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Liu obtained a Doctor of Management
degree from China Agricultural University in 2005. He is a
researcher and an expert in industrial economy and regional
development. Mr. Liu holds positions as Chairman of Shenzhen
Liying Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (#YIEBEEDEIEBRAR)
and Director of Global Agricultural Technology Innovation and
Development Center of Tsinghua University* (EE X2 2R E
¥R E A L EM). He has served as Deputy Secretary
General of China Agricultural Society* (T 22 &RIMER),
Deputy Director of Xinjiang Agriculture Department* (758 B8 2
Z#ER|EFR), Deputy Director of the Department of International
Cooperation of the Ministry of Agriculture* (2 2 2BEIEE A 1EF &
A]&) and Deputy Director of the Department of Personnel and
Labour* (A= 4 8) 7] 87 &).

Ms. Zhou Jin, aged 33, is an executive Director. Ms. Zhou holds
a diploma of business (marketing) from Australian Academy of
Commerce awarded in December 2012. She also completed an
enterprise CEO advanced seminar* (1> ¥ 42% = R AHE ) from
Wuhan University in 2016. Ms. Zhou was an assistant to general
manager, officer and vice-general manager of Wuhan Zhangjiawan
Freight Company Limited* (BUERFREEBEFREEAR]) from
March 2012 to March 2014. She was the director of XAHT
Antenna Technologies (Hongkong) Limited from 2017 until March
2019, principally responsible for promotion and sales work in the
Australian market.

* for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cao Hongmin, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor of Laws and a Master of
Economics from Lanzhou University (B A£%) and a Doctor
of Management from China Agricultural University. Mr. Cao has
also undertaken post-doctoral research in history from Peking
University. Mr. Cao holds positions including chairman of the
board of director of Wuhuo (Shenzhen) Smart City Security Sci-
tech Co., Ltd.* (B A(FIN)ES Z T & 2 EHE AR A F], chairman
of Shenzhen Fuzhi Public Welfare Foundation* ( & #Il 1 i &
NimFELE), department head and professor of China Rural
Deveopment Research Institute* of the Beijing TangYongtong
College* At R 5 A Efc+ Bl 2 8 R 7tht) and Professor of
Oriental Management Research Institute, Xi’an Jiaotong University.

Mr. Chan Chi Pan, aged 38, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
in China Business from City University of Hong Kong in July 2009.
He holds an estate agency salesperson'’s licence granted by the
Estate Agents Authority in April 2018 and an insurance agent
licence. Mr. Chan is now currently serving as a deputy director at
an immigration consultancy company in Hong Kong. He has also
joined a Hong Kong financial services company in 2017 and is
mainly responsible for selling insurance products to customers.

Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter, aged 58, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy
from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong in November 1992, and
has become an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since September 1997. Mr. Li has
been a non-executive director of Golden Faith Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2863) (“Golden Faith”), a company of which
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

* for identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Xiaoliang, aged 48, is chief executive officer of the
Group. Mr. Lai obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in English and a
professional certificate in international finance from Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies in 1998. He was the head of
overseas agricultural technology cooperation project of China
Guangdong International Cooperation Group* (FF[B/E 5 B
A1EEE). Mr. Lai was also the general manager of a foreign
headhunting company in the South China region and a senior
consultant of a real estate strategy consulting agency. Mr. Lai is
currently a director of New World Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd*
(FT RIS (RN AR A R)) and chairman of Hubei Bio-great
Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd* (#it 9lim & 2 E RS
R A).

* for identification purpose only
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GOVERNANCE

The Board is pleased to present hereby the corporate governance
report of the Company for the Reporting Period.

The Directors and the management of the Group recognize the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long-term
and continuing success of the Group. Therefore, the Board
is committed to upholding good corporate standards and
procedures for the best interest of the Company’s shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules sets out the principles of good corporate
governance, code provisions and recommended best practices.
Issuers are expected to comply with the code provisions or devise
their own code on corporate governance on the terms they
consider appropriate provided that considered reasons are given.
Throughout the Reporting Period, save as disclosed below, the
Company had complied with the applicable code provisions of the
Code with the exception of the deviations as explained:

C.1.8 Appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors

The Code provision C.1.8 stipulates that the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against the Directors. The Company does not have insurance
cover in this respect because the Board believes that the
Director’s risk of being sued or getting involved in litigation in their
capacity as Directors is relatively low. The Board will review the
need for taking out this sort of insurance from time to time.

F.2.2 Attendance of Chairman in Annual General
Meeting

The Code provision F.2.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The chairman
of the Company, Mr. Liu Yingjie, was unable to attend the annual
general meeting held on 8 June 2022 due to the travel restriction
in Covid-19 pandemic. The Board elected an independent non-
executive Director, Mr.Li Kar Fai, Peter, to chair the annual general
meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the management and administration of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees of the Company (the “Board Committee”). Further
details of the Board Committees are set out in this annual report.
Under the terms of reference, the duties of the Board in respect of
corporate governance are as follows:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3.  to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and

disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.

18 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EEZERERAT

Exg

ESENTERTEBENIARENEER
BCFIVERER UREREERENHR
B EEEREFENREBEAKREEERK
THROREMEE- LI EFSGERHS
BEDKTARREZZES ([EEEE8
gl FHEEZEENE—THBENKE
FEHRE - REBERE  BEFSAEITH
EERERBEWT

1. FIERRSASENERESBRLE
Mo WIRHERE

2. BRIALEREZELRSMEEAENE
MFFEERHER

3. B RERAEEEETERNMEER
FEEARBUR R B
4. HIE - A MERE %F%%&EEW

BEIRARTFM (WE)

5. REARRESTTANERMERNRTR
EEERREANNMEE



Composition of the Board

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Liu Yingjie (Chairman)
Ms. Zhou Jin

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Cao Hongmin

Mr. Chan Chi Pan

Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter

The Company complied with the requirement under Rule 5.05(1)
and Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each
of the independent non-executive Directors to confirm their
independence pursuant to Rules 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. In
this connection, the Company has received positive confirmations
from all of the independent non-executive Directors. Based on
the confirmations received, the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent under the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Board has established mechanisms pursuant to Code
provision B1.4 to ensure independent views and input are
available to the Board, which the Board shall review on an annual
basis to ensure the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanisms. A summary of the mechanism is set out below:

1) the Board shall ensure the appointment of at least three
INEDs and at least one-third of its members being INED.

2) the INED candidate must satisfy the independence
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. Each INED is
also required to inform the Company as soon as practicable
if there is any change in his or her own personal particulars
that may materially affect his or her independence and
provide an annual confirmation of his or her independence
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.
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3) The Company is committed to ensuring that the INEDs
will be given the opportunity and channel for Directors to
communicate and express their independent views and
inputs to the Board and its committees.

Save as disclosed in the section of “Biographical Details of
the Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
there is no financial business, family or other material or
relevant relationship among members of the Board and senior
management.

Board and General Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well
as operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors
may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had 7 meetings and 1
general meetings. The attendance of the respective Directors at
the Board meetings and general meetings are set out below:

Executive Director HITES
Mr. Liu Yingjie El e e
Ms. Zhou Jin Zhou Jin 2=+

Independent Non-executive &3 E#{TE=E
Director

Mr. Cao Hongmin EAHARSE
Mr. Chan Chi Pan PR AENE S
Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter = e
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CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors in respect
of the shares of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”). After
specific enquiries of all the Directors by the Company, all Directors
have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required
standard of dealing set out in the Code of Conduct throughout
the Reporting Period, and the Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with such required standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions by Directors throughout the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample
continuing professional development for the Directors for a sound
and effective internal system and corporate governance. In this
regard, the Group has always encouraged our Directors to attend
relevant training courses to receive the latest news ad knowledge
regarding corporate governance.
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According to the Code provision C.1.4, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors, on an
ongoing basis, have been provided with reading materials in
relation to amendments to or updates on relevant laws, rules and
regulations relevant to their duties. The Company has encouraged
all Directors to attend a wide range of training courses on the
updates of the GEM Listing Rules concerning good corporate
governance practices. The Company will, if necessary, provide
timely and regular trainings to the Directors to ensure that they
are kept abreast of the latest requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules. The Group has also adopted a policy to reimburse the
Directors for any relevant training costs and expenses incurred
concerning corporate governance and internal control.

Name of Directors

BETAIEXECILGE 2REETELRE
SEEERE  UERAEFTHAOZRE
B ESCIERGHEBRESBAMNMERE
# - RARBRENSTENABEM R
ARAEBEBEFEREBEZHEIIRE
NABBEGEM EMARRIF S RRIFEER
ERORHER - ARRBEREEAESEIR
fiE R & E B BRI SR IRGEM £
MHRAMSEFHTE - REE T2 HM—IBRK
R EREHEESRAMOCES ARAIE
ERTEARBEIERRAX -

Type of trainings

EHED

ExER

Mr. Liu Yingjie BIHARSE
Ms. Zhou Jin Zhou Jin Z =+
Mr. Cao Hongmin BHELA
Mr. Chan Chi Pan PR ST
Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter FEEA

Type of trainings:
A attending seminars/coferences/forums
B: reading books, journals and updates relating to the general

business, risk management, regulatory updates and directors’
duties and responsibilities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant GEM Listing Rules and to
assist the Board to discharge its duties. Currently, three
committees has been established, i.e. the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”). The function and responsibilities
of these committees have been set out in the relevant terms of
reference which are of no less stringent than that stated in the
Code. The relevant terms of reference of each of the three can
be found on the Group’s website (www.gf-holdings.com) and
the website of the Stock Exchange. All committees have been
provided with sufficient resources and support from the Group to
discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 2 August
2014 with its terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to
5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules, and provisions D.3.3 and D.3.7 of
the Code. The majority of the Audit Committee members must be
independent non-executive Directors and must be chaired by an
independent non-executive Directors. If any member of the Audit
Committee ceases to be a Director, he/she will cease to be a
member of the Audit Committee automatically.

The Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of three
members, at least one of whom is an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualification or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required under Rule
5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. In addition, the majority of the
Audit Committee shall be independent non-executive Directors.
As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter (Chairman), Mr. Chan Chi
Pang and Mr. Cao Hongmin.

The Company complied with the requirement under Rule 5.28 of
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2022.
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With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are, among others (for
the complete terms of reference, please refer to the Company’s
website at www.gf-holdings.com):

10.

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of the Company’s external auditors, and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Company’s external auditors;

to review and monitor the Company’s external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging the
Company'’s external auditors to supply non-audit services, if
any;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to discuss with the Company’s external auditors questions
and doubts arising in audit of annual accounts;

to review the letter of the Company’s management from
the Company’s external auditors and the management’s
response;

to review the statement about the Company’s internal
control system as included in the Company’s annual report
prior to submission for the Board’s approval;

to review the Company’s financial reporting, financial
controls, internal control and risk management system;

to discuss the internal control system with the Company’s
management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have an effective internal control system;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and management’s response to these findings;
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11. to review the financial and accounting policies and practices
of the Group;

12. to review arrangements employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters; and

13. to report to the Board on that matters pursuant to the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee and consider other
topics as defined by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had held 6
meetings. The attendance records of the members of the Audit
Committee during the Reporting Period are summarized below:

Member of Audit Committee EREEEHE
Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter FRIBEE
Mr. Chan Chi Pan PR A ST A
Mr. Cao Hongmin BHELA

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had reviewed
the Group’s audited results for the year ended 31 December
2021, the unaudited quarterly results of the Group for the three
months ended 31 March 2022, the unaudited interim results of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 202, the unaudited
quarterly results of the Group for the nine months ended 30
September 2022 and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee had also reviewed the
Group’s audited annual results for the Reporting Period, this
annual report, and confirmed that this annual report complies
with the applicable standard, the GEM Listing Rules, and other
applicable legal requirements and those adequate disclosures
have been made. There is no disagreement between the Directors
and the Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment
of the external auditors.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has properly
discharged its duties and responsibilities during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 2 August 2014
with terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 at
the GEM Listing Rules, and provision E.1.2 of the Code. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Cao Hongmin (Chairman), Mr. Chan Chi
Pan and Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter, all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors.

With reference to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, the primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include (for the complete terms of reference, please
refer to the Company’s website at www.gf-holdings.com):

1. to consult the chairman of the Board and/or chief executive
about their remuneration proposals for other executive
Directors;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

3. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

4.  to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management;

5.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

6. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;
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7. 1o review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
and

8.  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting. The attendance records of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are summarized below:

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

Para

EERRE

7. RERHERANCTEFREAEEAL
RERARK I BEHEATAL N
BEOE A RRRIR R M EA K R
B %aﬁé%w% B BEE A
RE - TEHBS

8. W MHERERTAKREMBEERE
RBEBEFMY LA E?‘HF © DARELR
ZELPRE OB ﬂi%/\m
MR8 ARRETAEREEE -

AN FHEZESRTT1REE -
@ B HHE RN T

Attendance/

Number of meetings

HERE, EERE

Member of Remuneration Committee HMMZESEHKE

Mr. Cao Hongmin BHELA
Mr. Chan Chi Pan PR R ST AE
Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter AL

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee had
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board is of the view that the Remuneration Committee has
properly discharged its duties and responsibilities during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 2 August 2014
with terms of reference in compliance with provisions B.3.1 and
B.3.2 of the Code. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Chan Chi Pan
(Chairman), Mr. Cao Hongmin and Li Kar Fai, Peter, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors.
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With reference to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the primary responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include (for the complete terms of reference, please
refer to the Company’s website at www.gf-holdings.com):

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendation on proposed changes, if any, to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to review the Company’s board diversity policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing
the said policy;

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

4.  to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee had
held 1 meeting. The attendance records of the members of the
Nomination Committee are summarized below:
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Attendance/

Number of meetings

HERE,EERE

Member of Nomination Committee RBEZEERE
Mr. Chan Chi Pan BRAEXH 754
Mr. Cao Hongmin BHREA
Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter FEEAE
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, and reviewed the qualifications of the Directors and the
progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy.

The Board is of the view that the Nomination Committee has
properly discharged its duties and responsibilities during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) on 1 January 2019. It aims at strengthen the
transparency and accountability of the Board and/or Nomination
Committee on election of directors including independent non-
executive directors. The Board will review the Nomination Policy
from time to time.

Selection Criteria of Directors

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate to be nominated to the Board for it to consider and
make recommendation to shareholders for election as directors of
the Company at the general meetings and appoint him/her to fill
casual vacancies.

° Qualifications and experience in the relevant industries in
which the Company’s business is involved or is going to be
involved;

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest

° Reputation for integrity; and
° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,

cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

The Nomination Committee shall call a meeting, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members (if any) for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting.
The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members;

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information, together with their written consent to
be appointed as a director of the Company. The Nomination
Committee may request candidates to provide additional
information and documents, if considered necessary;

The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed
candidate’s suitability with reference to the factors stated above
and make recommendation(s) to the Board’s consideration and
approval;

In the case of the re-election of a director at the general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution of
the directors to the Company and their services, their participation
and performance within the Board, and whether such director
still meets the needs to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Group adopted policy in relation to the diversity of the
members of the Board (“Board Diversity Policy”) and summary
of the policy is as follows:

1. selection of Board members will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service; and

2. the Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation

of the diversity policy from time to time to ensure the
effectiveness of the diversity policy.
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With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly diverse
Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
regional and industry experience, background, gender and other
qualities of the Directors. These differences will be considered
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All
appointment of the Directors are made on meritocracy, and will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity oon the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five Directors,
three are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The Board comprised four males,
representing 80% of the Board, and one female, representing
20% of the Board; and our senior management comprised one
male, representing 100% of senior management.

Construction industry has generally been short of female talents
due to social and culture traditions. The Company managed to
maintain a gender ratio of male to female in the workforce of
approximately 4:1.

The Board has met the goals for gender diversity under the Board
Diversity Policy for FY2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy on payment of dividends
on 1 January 2019. It aims at enhancing transparency of the
Company and facilitating its shareholders and the potential
investors of the Company to make informed investment decision
relating to the Company. The Board will review the dividend policy
from time to time.
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While the Company intends to declare and pay dividends in the
future, the payment and the amount of any dividends will depend
on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

3.  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

4.  the Group’s liquidity position;

5. the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

6. any other factors that the board of directors of the Company
deems relevant.

Shareholders will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata
according to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the
shares. The declaration, payment, and amount of dividends will
be subject to the Board’s discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to declare or distribute any dividend
in the amount set out in any of the plans or at all. The Company’s
dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be
declared or paid by the Company in the future.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA”) as the Group’s external
auditors to conduct audit of the financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The auditor’s remuneration
paid or payable for the Reporting Period is set out below:

Services rendered

RERE

BRI WA

Audit of financial statements
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Fee paid or payable
ENRENER

HK$
BT

728,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee (“Mr. Cheung”) is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Cheung has adequate knowledge on the
Company to discharge his duty as the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Cheung confirmed that he had taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Reporting
Period.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Yingjie is the compliance officer of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management. The Board must ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains effective internal control and risk
management systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders and the assets of the Company.
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The Board oversees the overall risk management and internal
control system of the Group on an ongoing basis and endeavors
to identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems compatible with the
Commissioner of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) - Integrated Framework 2013 principles are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and provide only reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy set out
the process of identification, evaluation and management of the
principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its division. It identifies and assesses
the principal risks on a quarterly basis with mitigation plans
to manage those risks;

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group,
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified and documented;

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal controls.

The risk management framework, coupled with our internal
controls, ensures that the risk associated with our different
business units are effectively controlled in line with the Group’s
appetite.

The Company does not have an internal audit department
and engaged an external internal control consultant, Premier
Advisory Services Limited, to conduct review on the internal
control system of the Group during the Reporting Period. The
review covering certain procedures and implementation of risk
management policies of the Group and make recommendations
for improvement and strengthening of internal control system.
No significant areas of concern that may affect the financial,
operational, compliance, controls and risk management of the
Group have been identified.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control system are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting function and
the Board has reached the conclusion that the Group’s risk
management and internal control system was in place and
effective.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of
inside information with an aim to ensure that the insiders abide by
the confidentiality requirement and fulfill the disclosure obligation
of the inside information.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements and to ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared in a manner which reflects
the true and fair view of the state of affairs, results and cash flows
of the Group and are in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards and principles, applicable laws and disclosure
provisions required under the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors
are of the view that the financial statements of the Group for each
financial year have been prepared on this basis.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there are no uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Statement of the Company’s external auditors’ responsibilities in
respect of the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of this annual report.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a forum in which
the Board and the Shareholders communicate directly and
exchange views concerning the affairs and overall performance
of the Group, and its future developments, etc. At the AGM,
the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
will answer questions raised by the Shareholders. The external
auditor of the Company is also invited to be present at the AGM
to address to queries of the Shareholders concerning the audit
procedures and the auditors’ report.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company at which a special
resolution is to be passed is scheduled to be held on 8 June
2023, the notice of which shall be sent to the Shareholders at
least 21 days prior to this meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting on
Requisition by Shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”).
EGMs shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, all reasonable
expenses incurred by the acquisition(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of
Directors

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office of
the Company. The period for lodgement of the notices required
under the Articles will commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
7 days.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may direct their enquiries concerning their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars. Shareholders
may also make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent that such information has been made publicly available by
the Company. All written enquiries or requests may be forwarded
to the Company’s head office or by fax to (852) 3571 9460, or by
email to info@gf-holdings.com.

The addresses of the Company head office and the Company’s
share registrars can be found in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to
investors, the Group delivers information of the Group to the
public through various channels, including general meeting, public
announcement and financial reports. The investors are also able
to access the latest news and information of the Group via our
website (www.gf-holdings.com).

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which aims at promoting effective communication with
the Company’s shareholders and the investors, enabling them to
exercise their rights in an informed manner. It is the Company’s
general policy to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and the investors. Enquiries, suggestions or views from the
shareholders and/or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from
the shareholders may be put in writing to the Board through the
following channels to the Company:

Address: Suite 821, 8" Floor

Ocean Centre, Harbour City
5 Canton Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Email: info@gf-holdings.com

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of its communication policy during the Reporting Period and
conclude that it is effective.

38 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EiEiERERAHE

REERFE

REREARZENREERZEEN A&
ERZEREMNARATEEEL  BER
RARE RERMBERE - WEEBIMARA
A &) 48 uh (www.gf-holdings.com) & B AN &
BITHERER -

ARRERIBRBBEE - §HEHEBAR
AIRREREENERER  SHREFREX
IBEIE UL NATREAER] » R 2RI —ARIRER D
HER R EEREFBRERR - ARRIERL
R/ HREENETH  BEFEXAER K
RABBATEERARRNERLARE
FERLEN

BB
BRI
&R 8 5 5%
R
812821 =

HdE -

BH : info@gf-holdings.com

R 890 » AAREBMELBRRENE
HERRA R - BB AR BE R -
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ABOUT GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED

Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), believe
operating sustainably and quality growth is the key to our success
and the economic basis for us to practice social responsibility. The
Group strives to integrate environmentally friendly practices into all
aspects of our daily operations to grow its business and create a
positive impact on the market.

For the Reporting Period, the Group and its subsidiaries are
mainly engaged in provision of concrete demolition services
and manufacturing and trading of prefabricated construction
components.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (‘ESG Guide”) as set
out in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The
information in this ESG Report is derived from the Group’s official
documents and statistical data, as well as the integration and
summary of monitoring, management and operational information
provided by subsidiaries of the Group. Information on the
environmental and social aspects of the report is set out below.

The reporting period of this ESG report is from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022 (“Reporting Period”). This report highlights
significant environmental and social impacts of our business
activities in the provision of concrete demolition and construction
engineering services, and the manufacturing and trading of
prefabricated precast construction components.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal
documents and statistics of the Group, as well as the combined
control, management and operations information provided by the
subsidiaries in accordance with the Group’s internal management
systems. A complete content index is appended to the last
section of the report for easy reference.
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholders’ opinions are the solid foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development and success. In order to understand
what social and environmental issues are valued the most by our
stakeholders, stakeholder engagement is a key element of Glory
Flame’s social responsibility management. Opinions are shared
in our regular meetings with clients and subcontractors regarding
environmental, occupational health and safety management, as
well as quality management. We integrate their opinions with our
daily operational decisions, strive to balance the interests of the
parties through effective communications. The table below shows
a list of the Group’s stakeholders.

Stakeholder Groups Specific Stakeholder

K ESHE

HNENBRRAEEFBERMKNHE
BEEW - BT TREMFNDERSERNIT
SRREME  BHEZ2RITVRRLEEME
EEMNEREER - RMEETP LY B
EHERLMRE BERERLTEZEEN
mEEENFER - HAIKKRENERR
ABBRERE  BHVEEBETOER
Mo Rt HEHIBHIRFER o TRIIRASE
B ERE

Communication Channel

FpEAR BEFDE
Investors ° Shareholders
REE IR
° Potential investors
BEREE
Employees ° Senior management
&8 RRERE
o Staff
BT
o Direct workers
BEITA
o Potential recruits
BEREE
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>  Corporate website
AL

> Annual and interim financial report
FERPHTBRE

> Quarterly reports, announcements
and other public information
FERE AEREMARER

> Annual general meetings

RERBAFRE

> Direct communication
HEER

> Independent focus groups and
interviews

B B/ ME R E

> Training and seminars
Fl AR E

> Regular performance assessment
AR AT (L

>  CSR and volunteering activities

rEMEREREREE
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Stakeholder Groups Specific Stakeholder Communication Channel

BEFNE BERE

K EAR

Customers

'F

Suppliers/Contractors

HEs, EEH

Community
HE

Government

BUF

Main-contractors
HEGER
Buyers

BX

Ultimate users
REAP

Material suppliers
MR e
Sub-contractors
paNali=]

Service providers

ARIG G RER

National and local community
organisations

2B & & it (= AR 4

National and local governments
2 B I & IBUT
Regulators

EEWE

Periodical meetings with
contractors and customers
HERELEFEHARE
Customers assessment
BFAHE

Designated customer hotline
BEFER

Social media

AR

Suppliers assessment

Y TERRE

Daily work review
BHIE®Es

Site inspection/meeting with sub-
contractors
EHRR Ao BERE
Charitable donations
RERE

Community programme
et

Written correspondence
EHEH

Statutory reports and general
disclosures

BTSN AR IR
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMFE

With the aim to identify stakeholders’ key concerns with reference A2 (3835 - & R EAREIES]) #lH
to the ESG Reporting Guide, we conducted a materiality H&BIMNEL RS RNFERBEEZD
assessment based on various analysis and communications ZEMERSEDN M E@RETEEMHTMHE -
with stakeholders during the year. Consolidating the results of 4R& WEBFHEMAEER - RACHERLOT
internal assessment and survey, we have compiled the materiality ~ FT/REYE E 4R o AT )RR EUE
matrix as shown below. We strive to ensure proper measures EiEMAREEEE TSHB D BEZETE
on significant issues are addressed adequately throughout our  EHE o

business activities.

Materiality Assessment

EEMFME

o

16791822

@
o @ 0 @
2121416 . 11 .

131519 '
@

~

520 ‘

N

Importance to the Sustainable Development at the Group
HEAKRETRHEZENEERE

0 1 2 3 4 5 6
Importance to Stakeholders
HERRNEERE
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Protecting our planet

RIE IR

Air and noise emissions control

B SR N2 R HE A

Resource management (energy, water and
waste)

BRER (RER - KREEY)

Project management and material usage
THE BB RMEHEA

Site environment impact

MIRETE

Green office

FEPRNE

Climate change

gty

RIREE

Dedicated workforce

WENET

10

11

Occupational health and safety

BEREERLZE

Employment practices

FRELE DI

Employee training and development
EEEIIRER

Diversity and equal opportunity
Zle R E#E

Protecting human rights (child and forced labour)
{REEAME (ET RoEHI%T)
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Responsible value chain

SEENEERE

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Corporate governance and compliance

EEER KB
Anti-corruption
RES
Confidentiality and
wm M BURTLE

data privacy

Product and service quality management
EmkREmEERE

Customer safety, engagement and satisfaction
BRFLZE RARENWMEE

Customers’ and users’ health and safety
EEMAPHNREREZE

Supplier and subcontractor engagement

HEBEDBEEER

i

Supplier and subcontractors” environmental and
social responsibility

HERE kD BEH

REMEEE

Transparent and fair procurement practices

BRARF R ED

Corporate citizen
TEAR

21

22

Community investment and engagement

HRIE NS E

Site impact on local communities

h T3 E At (@ Y

=/ a0

e
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PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

It is an indisputable fact that global warming is getting increasingly
severe. The Group is aware of its responsibility and required
commitment to the environmental sustainable development of its
on-going operations. As a key player in the construction industry,
we support the idea of green environment, comply with the
requirements of the laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the
PRC, and any specific guides in the industry.

EMISSIONS

We are aware that emission reduction has increasingly become an
important element for the global economy, hence has integrated
environmental management into the operational decisions and
various processes of the Group. Emissions from our daily business
activities mainly represent greenhouse gases (“GHG”) emissions,
noise, waste and effluents while carrying out construction works.

Environmentally-Friendly Demolition Methods

Construction materials such as sands and cement stored outdoor
as well as the dust of the exposed construction area are easily
scattered. In order to prevent the generation of dust during
our works, environmentally friendly construction methods such
as scarifying and shot blasting are adopted. These methods
significantly reduce the amount of dust emitted to the surrounding
areas of construction sites. It also produces excellent bonding
characteristics that reduce the risk of coating failure to improve
road safety and maximise floor life.

For projects that involve indoor demolition works, demolition
methods that would not emit exhaust gas and would cause only
minimal vibration during works were used. To ensure the safety
of workers, our machinery can be remotely controlled so that our
workers do not have to work close to the areas under demolition.

We also adopt splitting/bursting as a demolition method. Under
this method, splitter is inserted into a hole of the concrete
structure drilled beforehand for bursting the structure from within,
resulting in minimum noise emission and vibration.
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Prefabricated construction components HERMXNBEIRH

Unlike traditional construction methods, prefabricated construction — ER{E &R & AR - HE A ZELUER4E
components are constructed in a factory environment to facilitate L5 @ FEM A ABIRBHME - 5317
materials to be recycled or reused. A considerable amount of EHEEEBEELFAEHREEREIEHHIR
dust and noise emissions can be further reduced thanks to 3% & JREE M@ ZHER AT #E — 2m 2 » FEF 1P
compressed project timelines and the controlled environment HJAEME @ FMfI31#E THEKEE - BRX
of the production factory. In our production factory, we have #RZ &) H F4EE KL IEHEE

introduced a water spraying device for daily maintenance of sub-

assemblies and for the prevention of dust scattering.

For the Reporting Period, air emissions generated by the Group R AR & HA N - 7N 5= B & A #Y BF mBE p a0
were as follows: ™~

Emissions data from usage AERRE
of vehicles and gaseous BRELEFEN
fuel consumption B EE
Nitrogen Oxide (NO,) A8k (NO,) kg F52 556.46 493.09
Sulphur Oxide (SO,) ek (SO) kg T 0.71 0.65
Particulate Matter (PM) AR (PM) kg F5 50.10 43.86
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For the Reporting Period, GHG emissions generated by the Group ~ R ZARIR& HIR - AN &= @ E A KR = R 2K

were as follows: PN

Unit (CO,
equivalent)

B (=&
fLIIREE)

Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1)

BEEFRRAERERER (8E1)

GHG emissions from mobile Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 114.60 1056.59
combustion sources
MBI IR AR = RESHEA —&1tbhiR (CO,) 7
Methane (CH,) kg 107.23 69.66
Bt (CH,) T
Nitrous oxide (N,O) tonne 5.00 4.93
A1t A (N,O) U

Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)

REREEGER (8E 2)

Electricity purchased from power Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 136.40 235.86
companies
WENRARBENEN —&1khx (COs,) 143

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3)

HitE& s (8E 3)

Paper waste disposed at landfills Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 1.41 0.23
FEIHIER MR —&kHk (CO,) 17
Electricity used for processing fresh Carbon Dioxide (CO,) kg 39.73 37.74

water and sewage by
the government department

B EPIEREEER KK — 4R (CO,) T
757K

Due to COVID-19 pandemic, there has been no business air travel HRFIEHRSRE @ |EFARPIHLEE

by our employees during the Reporting Period. BIRPRAMEHINAES ©
WASTE MANAGEMENT BEYMER

Handling and disposing of solid waste are an urgent environmental & IE [ i & [E 58 E ¥ 2 B8 BE IR IEM
issue in Hong Kong. The Group realises that the construction 8 © AEB BRI BEETESERNREEY
wastes generated on construction sites will place a heavy burden & ¥ EEEYEIE RIEEKNEEBE ©

on waste disposal facilities.
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Waste is generated mainly from the disposal of materials from
our construction sites, all of them are non-hazardous and have
been properly transported to designated receiving facilities
in accordance with the requirements of the Waste Disposal
Ordinance. In general, the Group categorises the waste from
construction works before removal from the site. General inert
waste from work, such as rocks, shall be reused as filling materials
at the site if applicable or disposed to public fill for reclamation in
the future. Other waste that is not applicable for recycling or reuse
shall be discarded to the public filling areas to conserve landfills.

In respect of office waste, we shall continue to encourage
our employees to fully utilise all materials to avoid producing
unnecessary waste and to reduce paper usage electronic means.

For the Reporting Period, the amount of non-hazardous waste
produced by the Group was as follows:
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BEEYVIZREZETHEENYL A
BEEMHRESE - WK (EYERE G
REZEBERERTRBERE - —RME -
AEBSEZETRREEME T B EREH
D TRREAN—REBEUEEMNELS
FERBBATERELRSEMHSNES
NPELEERRESZA - HfNERR
BERIBANEVDIEZEEATEALEAGHH
HER R o

M AEREYME  RMEEEXBEE T
DERAEMHARRTHENRE - MFE
EFEAEFHARDERER -

MRABRERAN  NEEBEENEZTED N
T

Construction waste intensity REERY)EE tonne/work order 1.71 412
Wi, TYERTEE
Construction waste JREEREY) tonne I 1,656.41 7,217 .44

To reduce waste reduction, the Group separates waste before
disposal and take waste to the allocated sorting area. We have
adopted a trip-ticket system to avoid fly-tipping and to ensure
waste is disposed of properly when our client did not provide the
disposal area. The Group also implement the following measures
to reduce:

° Maximise the utilisation of materials and avoid unnecessary
use and cutting;

° Order the appropriate amount of raw material at the
appropriate time;

o Store materials in an allocated area with suitable protective
measures;

° Periodically review operating procedures to minimise waste
generation; and

° Collect the exact number of materials and return the surplus
to stock as needed.

TR - AEEEREEYA S A EY
DR UREMEIEESER - RASK
B ALSTE - LB RER P ARREMRIR
BRIREIHIER T - BEE R E SR I FEIR 5
REBNZERE - AEEITREUA T

JRLRE -

o  HAREFMAHE - @R TBENER
K&

s HERERRIIBEZRHENFREME

o BMHEFRERE RS IRIVEE HR

EiE
s TEHELTRIFEFUZRERDEMNE
£ Rk

o WEBYBENMHLREFS
B ROER -

i#5 IR
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Due to our business nature (provision of construction services and
building materials supply), no hazardous waste was generated
from our operations for the Reporting Period.

USE OF RESOURCES

To make good on the Group’s promise of achieving environmentally
sustainable development, we have actively assumed our
environmental responsibility in our daily operations and formulated
the code of practice and technical skills. The Group’s major use
of resources includes paper, energy and water consumption.
For energy use, both office operation and the carrying out
of construction works consume electricity and fuel. Fuel
consumption mostly came from equipment operation and ground
transportation of equipment during delivery, while electricity
consumption was from office operation. We place great emphasis
on resource conservation and strives to enhance the energy
efficiency by strengthening the maintenance of construction
equipment, optimising operation procedures, and adopting
energy-saving measures.

Several initiatives have been implemented in offices and
construction sites to control energy consumption as follows:

R PIRERIEE (B2 LQ@HEA"“&%%

MR 4 BPINRE MR EEY
BELTMNAZEY -
BRER

REABRASBBERREAFEERANERE
BMER B SEPBEAERREME - W H
FERRAEST R R - AEBHEZER
ERERER  BERMICHRE - BRNEEIREE
AmE RPN AEEE KEETEEHR
FEE ) B AL o IREUBREARRE D EERN R
BERMY BB REBHEER - MEIH
RAKEMAEES - RAISEERERES
R BHEBEERERE  BILRERRE
KERANETBE R TEIR S AL IR o

PN T IR RN AR AT SRR FE T B HE R
AETHERFEION ¢

Office e Set and maintain average room temperatures between 24 and 26 T;
P /NES RERERTIERRER24E20E M
° Switch off office equipment (e.g. printers, computers and monitors) before leaving the
workplace;
BERA TYESSPTAIARAM A= RE (AITEIH - BRKRFER)
° Energy-friendly electrical appliances and devices, including LED lighting, and computers and
projectors, have been installed; and
ZREEEERNRE - BIELEDRBARER LR - &
° Priority was given to energy-efficient and low-emissions models to save electricity and reduce
indirect greenhouse gases generated.
BRZ AN MEBFRE - UEEENWR P EEELRERES ©
Site o Switch off non-essential lightings as well as idle machinery and equipment; and
Tih B T 2 B AR BA LA N (B B O S 2Rl - e

o Various communications (posters, signs and memos) for promoting energy conservation have

been launched to raise construction Workers’ awareness.

LS EIRENRE AT (ER - 1R:E
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Apart from office operation, the major source of the Group’s
water consumption is from our construction segment. The Group
prudently uses water resources and strictly handles sewage
discharge to alleviate water shortage, and strives to reduce the
negative impact on the surrounding environment. To promote
water conservation, the Group incorporated various water
conservation measures in both offices and project sites. Control
measures like protection of drainage system and discharge point
to avoid blockage, and conduction of regular self-monitoring
checks to ensure the quality of the effluent discharged meeting
the prescribed standards, are being practised in our daily
operations. At our construction sites, ground wastewater is
collected and properly treated by on-site wastewater treatment
facilities and then reused for dust suppression and vehicle wheel
washing mud to lower freshwater consumption and sewage. Our
sub-contractors were also encouraged to work closely with our
staff to implement appropriate measures to prevent the waste of
fresh water on site.

To achieve our efficient use of energy, the Group advocates
the Reduce, Replace and Reuse approach, in line with national
initiatives. Our management will constantly update the latest news
on environmental protection to enhance existing services and
reduce environmental pollution.

For the Reporting Period, the resources consumption by the
Group were as follows:
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2% o PREBET b - BAFUEIL AIREIFK
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RARE o
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RARERA - NREBWNERBRELT

Electricity Consumption HE=E KWh F ELBF 252,013.83 317,416.96
kWh/employee 2,571.57 1,350.71
TR B8
Water Consumption BKkE m® 37 77K 129.00 66.90
m*/employee 1.32 0.28
NHEKRBE
Paper Usage R4z kg T2 293.50 230.49
kg/employee 3.00 0.98
FT%/1BE
For the Reporting Period, the Group’s operations do not involve R RE AR - AL E 2 H 50 5 kB EM
any use of packaging materials. R o
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ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

In view of the growing greenhouse effect and climate change,
energy conservation, carbon reduction and minimising pollution
have become global issue that could affect any one of us.
In compliance with applicable environmental legislation, our
operating activities have no significant impact on the environment
and natural resources. For the sake of compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, we regularly assess the environmental risks
of our operations and adopt preventive measures as necessary to
reduce the risks.

To join the global efforts in reducing emissions and secure
a sustainable future, the Group took into consideration the
industry’s best practices and analysed its previous quantitative
environmental data disclosed in past ESG reports in developing a
set of appropriate environmental targets. To this end, we have set
clear emission reduction targets to be achieved by the year 2026
by comparing with the 2021 baseline year:

° Reduce greenhouses gases emission by 10%;
o Reduce waste disposal by 10%; and
° Reduce resources consumption by 10%.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has complied with
the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance,
Water Pollution Control Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance,
Dumping at Sea OrdinanceQ, Environment Impact Assessment
Ordinance and other regulations promulgated by governments
and currently applicable to the Group, as well as environmental
requirements from customers.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group in relation to air and GHG
emissions, noise control, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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Climate Change
RIRE1E

Focus Area

BEX

Governance

&l

Strategy
KB

Risk
Management
R

Metrics and
Targets
EERBEE
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Our Approach
BRMFEEH AR

Board oversight: The Board meets quarterly to oversee climate-related strategies, policies,
actions and disclosure.

EseEE E5eE BSRRABRIR RS © BUR - 1TRIRIKEE -

Management’s role: The Management supports climate action planning and internal policy
setting, as well as coordinating responses to climate-related risks.
EEENRE  SEESRERITENEERNEBERGIE - A KiRAREYRIKEERRE -

Policies and guidelines: The Management meets monthly and discusses any potential
climate change risk to our business. Corresponding mitigative measures will be implemented
and reviewed from time to time to assess their effectiveness.
BERKRES  EEET R ARE: am F PISR 75 T B O (] 7B
T B e S A AR AR AR AE e L\xaﬂfﬁﬁﬁxﬁz I o

Physical risks: Weather-related events such as storms, floods, fires or heatwaves that cause
damage to construction site facilities and operations. We work closely with the sub-contractor
at the site and assist with implementing fast-response measures, regular inspections and
hoarding to ensure sufficient sites operations.

ERER: BXAREENEH (RS - HK - AKSER) HRBET R R EEEN
BE - HFRFSHN D BETYEE  HHERRREEEH - s MRPRRER
NHERIFISEERRE ©

Transition risks: Impacts related to market risk are assessed in our construction materials
and energy efficiency requirements. In line with national initiative, we also keep abreast of
green building technologies.

BER RIS EEME LR AR
& BTN BEERARCREERI -
Climate-related risks are incorporated into the Group’s risk management framework and ESG

materiality assessment by different stakeholders. The Group will monitor and follow up on
both transition and physical climate-related risks and set up the policy to respond with our

BEERMREE

LABSE

TIRB(CAR - AAF

ERHMEETSERERNTE - REABRIE

management.
RIRAERE R R R TR A 28 @Fﬂ%iﬁq)@i%lmﬂ REIRIERKESG B2 - NEEK
B RRERE R RIFEEERRER - WHEBRARERMNERELREY -

Our management encourages employees to participate in green workshops to enhance
their environmental awareness, and continuously assess compliance with the green office
guidelines.
BMMEEESBEI2RGETIEY - MERARREH  WHENHZEH
BWEE -

NEFESIH
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group values people and considers a respectful and fair
working environment to be vital to its operations. We make sure
compensation packages offered to staff can be commensurate
with their performance and experience. Specifically, compensatory
leave, overtime allowance, discretionary bonus, mandatory
provident fund or pension security, social insurance, rewards for
long-term services, and an annually reviewed salary level in our
employment contracts allow the Group to retain quality talent.

Throughout the recruitment and promotion process, candidates
are assessed in regard to their qualifications and work
experiences and we treat all employees and candidates equally.
The Group has established a series of internal policies related to
employment with reference to anti-discrimination ordinances and
the guidance under Employment Ordinance, Laws of Hong Kong,
the Labour Law and Labour Contract Law of the PRC, as well as
industry features and practices to ensure that our employees are
treated fairly, and their employment, remuneration and promotion
are not affected by their social identities such as age, gender,
marital status, family status, sexual orientation, race, nationality or
religion.

A comprehensive Staff Handbook was formulated to support
human resources function, which covers guidelines on recruitment
and promotion, compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest
periods, appraisal, training and other benefits. The Group has
been reviewing its related policies from time to time to ensure
the Group complies with the latest statutory requirements.
We motivate employees by promotion, salary increment, and
discretionary bonus based on an annual performance appraisal. In
our demolition works subsidiary, a long service award is given to
those employees that have been employed for over 10 years as a
reward to their loyalty.

We take staff opinion seriously. All employees are welcome to
make comments and suggestions through various communication
channels such as letters, emails, or by communicating with
their direct supervisors, department heads, or our human
resources function. We make sure to keep the detail of such
communications and the identity of the employee confidential,
and to address any grievances of the employee as appropriate as
we can.
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Staff Composition

The Group’s principal businesses are prefabricated construction
and demolition works which requires plenty of physical labour.
Traditionally male employees comprise a majority of our
workforce, which does not mean we prefer hiring male employees
to female employees. We are firmly committed to gender equality,
and particularly encourages female participation in the Board, and

at managerial and operational levels.

As at 31 December 2022, we employed a total of 97 full-time staff
and 1 casual staff, including back-office and site staff. All of our
staff members are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Employees by Gender
RERESHES

1

& :
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Employees by Employment Category
REEERESNES

Senior

Middle

Management Management Enﬁry;.evel
BHERE SgEmE VRRT

Employees
& Ep v 13 11 74
Employees by Region Employees by Age Group
RiEESHNES RERARISSNES
62 ' =18 - 30 years old
18Z308%
®31 - 40 years old
31Z405%
0 50
100 =41 - 50 years old
41%508%
m Hong Kong 51 - 60 years old
e 62 51604
m The PRC 36 Over 60 years old
2] 60B% A |
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Employee turnover rate

By Gender RERIE D
Male B
Female g

By Age Group RERR AR B2
18 — 30 years old 18 2 30 5%
31 - 40 years old 31 = 40 5%
41 - 50 years old 41 & 50 5%
51 — 60 years old 51 & 60 5%
Over 60 years old 60 BRIA =
By Geographical Region BRitEE 5
Hong Kong BB

The PRC =8|

27% 15%
28% 11%
100% 43%
39% 3%
15% 23%
13% 15%
6% 0%
30% 10%
26% 17%

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning
compensation and dismissal,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

recruitment and promotion,

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Recognising that the construction industry is one of those
industries with a higher risk in terms of occupational health
and safety (“OHS”), we put safety first and are committed to
maintaining a workplace that is safe for our people. To ensure
that all employees are equipped with adequate knowledge in
protecting themselves from occupational hazards, the Group has
provided training for all levels of employees.
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For the Reporting Period, the Group’s operations do not possess
high-risk areas related to OHS to its employees except for
construction-related operations. We are determined to ensure that
all construction works are carried out in accordance with the best
OHS practices. Specifically, protective equipment such as safety
helmets, safety shoes and high visibility clothing are provided to all
personnel who needs to work at construction sites. Relevant OHS
training such as safety induction training, toolbox talks, specific
training for high-risk activities, periodic emergency contingency
drills to heighten employee awareness of workplace hazards are
provided to staff to ensure they are competent to discharge their
OHS responsibilities and obligations and respond to emergencies.

We hire professionally qualified persons in OHS to oversee the
management of safety risks and issues in our operations. Safety
measures are tailored to respond to different site conditions
and activity risks to ensure a safe working environment for all
employees and those who work on our projects. Our safety
officers would regularly review and check for updates in applicable
safety laws and regulations. Site inspections are also regularly
performed to conduct risk assessment and Safety officers will
note for material safety issues, suggest remediation measures,
and follow up implementation of safety recommendations. Our on-
site foremen and site supervisors are required to co-operate with
our safety officers to ensure all health hazards would be rectified
promptly.

To keep the Group abreast of the latest OHS best practices and/
or updated in-laws and regulations relevant to OHS, one of our
subsidiaries had registered as a Green Cross Group member
under the Occupation Safety and Health Council (“OSHC”) in
Hong Kong. This allows the Group to access the OSHC's library
to obtain the latest information and participate in workshops to
facilitate experience sharing and gain deeper insights into the
implementation of OHS best practices. The Group has continued
to optimise its work practices and daily management for the
sake of its staff's health and safety with the aim to create a safe,
healthy and comfortable working environment. To this end, our
operations fully comply with applicable laws and regulations such
as the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, Factories and Industrial Undertakings
Ordinance, Laws of Hong Kong, and Work Safety Law of the
PRC.
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Due to the nature of the construction industry, the risk of work
injuries cannot be completely eliminated. For the Reporting
Period, the work injury statistics for the Group were as follows:

Work Injury Statistics

AREETENEE  THERREETEEHE
Bre REEMA - AREITEAERN
™~

TE#HE
Number of work-related TERE&R case(s) 1+
fatalities MmaL T/ E
Rate of work-related fatalities T {ERE1Z percentage
ML T /YLLK Ebaid
Number of reported accidents ¥{45 89 Z 45N 81 H case(s) 1F
(sick leave > 3 days) (A > 3 K)
Lost days due to work injury A T{51E5%k day(s) H
TEEE

0 0 0
0% 0% 0%
4 3 2
341 397 162

In addition to providing adequate protective equipment and
implementing aforementioned site safety measures, the Group
introduced new plant and equipment to further enhance site
safety and productivity, such as camera drone which enhance the
effectiveness of site safety supervision. For the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any cases of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
in relation to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

The Group has introduced a number of measures in response to
the COVID-19 outbreak to safeguard the health of our employees
and to enable them to carry on with their daily work with a healthy
and positive state of mind. COVID-19 prevention facilities and
equipment, for example, non-contact forehead thermometers
were set up in offices and construction sites, while individual
health packs were distributed to show our care for the welfare of
our employees.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

We recognised that our construction workers are exposed to
higher injury risks than office staff. In order to reasonably mitigate
the risk of work-related injuries, our site foremen, site supervisors
and safety officers would conduct work safety briefings to all site
workers from time to time and when needed. Causes of accidents
in the construction industry are identified and corresponding
recommendations or training sessions will be provided to workers
to avoid the reoccurrence of similar accidents.

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and professionally
trained employees to its business growth and future success. We
provide equal opportunity for all staff to develop their knowledge,
skills and abilities through a blend of learning methods including
mentoring, coaching, on-the-job training, courses, conferences
and seminars. Employees’ self-development is encouraged
through the taking up of training programmes and seminars. We
also arranged for senior staff to guide junior so that employees
can complement each other and pass on valuable experience,
establishing a talent hierarchy for the future development of the
Group.

The Group also acknowledges the importance of conducting
performance appraisal with employees. On an annual basis,
performance appraisal is conducted between management and
employees for continuous improvement. Employees are able to
communicate and seek professional advice from their supervisors
on their career development progress.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group highly respects human rights and freedom. We strictly
prohibit the uses of child and forced labour in our workplace
by adhering with the Employment of Children Regulations and
Employment of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations under the
Employment Ordinance, Laws of Hong Kong, Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour, and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protection of the Minors. Comprehensive
recruitment procedures are required to be performed to check and
verify the age of a job applicant before the Group can hire him/her.
The procedures require a job applicant to present their valid proof
of identity to ensure that they have reached the legal working age.
Important details such as job duties, locations and working hours
of the staff are also set out clearly in the employment contract to
protect their rights of both parties are always duly signed between
the Group and the employees. Under no circumstance will we
tolerate labour exploitation, forced labour and child labour.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group in relation to preventing child and
forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

We place great emphasis on product quality to protect the
interests of our clients. Vendor management is a crucial part of
our quality control procedures. The Group stringently manage
suppliers and sub-contractors to avoid any inferior materials
acquired and adopt strict quality control over the production and
construction process. The Group has established a long-term
relationship with a variety of suppliers, service providers, material
manufacturers and sub-contractors who share our goals in
responsible management of business ethics, quality, safety, labour,
environmental management that we can integrate and interlink
them to deliver the best quality, timely, responsive and valuable
construction services to our clients. In daily operations, we work
closely with sub-contractors and communicate our management
requirements and obligations with documented instructions and
guidelines for safety and health management, including report on
work injuries and cooperating with the follow up investigation and
rectification.
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Through the implementation of a robust procurement and
tendering mechanism, we select reliable and competent business
partners from potential organisations in adherence to the principle
of equal opportunity and fair competition.

Specifically, we maintain approved lists of suppliers and
subcontractors while regular reviews are conducted to ensure
our suppliers, sub-contractors and service providers continue
to have the capability and capacity to provide stable and reliable
services and products. The Group evaluates and selects and sub-
contractors to provide materials, products and services to ensure
they are met with our end clients’ standards and requirements
of purchase. The Group’s suppliers are selected based on the
following factors: environmental compliance of products supplied;
quality of materials; and any background issues concerning
potential conflict of interest in supplying goods to the Group.

Looking forward, the Group aims to promote local economic
development and reduce carbon footprint, by prioritising local
suppliers by shortening the distance of transportation. In addition
to geographical factors, we expect our suppliers to meet the
requirements including but not limited to areas such as child or
forced labour, health and safety, working hours, discrimination and
disciplinary processes.

For the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by geographical
region of the Group was as follows:

Europe, 2
M

The PRC, 25

H
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group considers customer satisfaction is a key factor to the
success of project management. The Group strives to understand
and integrate customers’ needs into our architectural design and
planning of construction sites management. To meet the demand
of our clients, the Group has developed its internal management
system and closely monitored its project execution process, with
an aim to render premium and reliable service to our clients.

In our prefabricated construction business, we have established
and implemented a quality management system (“QMS”) in our
operations, which conforms with internationally recognised ISO
9001:2015 standard in Hong Kong. This system helps us to
comply with relevant laws, regulations and contract obligations
that are applicable to our products and services; control quality
issues systematically to enhance our customers’ satisfaction;
as well as continuously improve quality performance in our
operations. The Group also provides adequate training to all levels
of employees to raise their awareness of QMS in their responsible
tasks. For instance, the design, production and supply of our
product, Ready Mixed Concrete, has obtained the Quality
Scheme for the Production and Supply of Concrete (“QSPSC”)
under the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency.

For the Reporting Period, we received no complaints or claims
from our customers arising from the quality issues of the work
performed either by us or our sub-contractors, which in the
view of Directors, is attributable to the effective quality control
measures.

In our ordinary course of business, we would hardly have access
to confidential information of our clients. However, we attach great
attention to the protection of privacy and intellectual property. In
compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Laws of
Hong Kong, we ensure that all the collected business data from
our clients will be treated as strictly confidential and properly
dealt with by our staff. Our clients’ data can only be accessed
by designated personnel to prevent information leakage to
unauthorised persons or parties.
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On respecting intellectual property (“IP”) rights, employees should
also refrain from having unlicensed computer software on their
computers at the workplace. The Group complies with applicable
laws and regulations relevant to IP right to protect the interest
of the Group and our clients. We also request our suppliers to
comply with such laws and regulations.

With respect to fair advertising, the Group requires the employees
of the sales department to provide customers with accurate and
true information on the Group’s products and services. Hotline
and e-mail are also available for customers’ enquiries on service
details in order to provide better before and after-sale services.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group in relation to health and safety,
advertising, labelling, and privacy matters related to products and
services provided.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We believe in fairness and honesty in business dealing and we
do not tolerate corruption, bribery, money laundering and other
fraudulent activities in connection with any of our business
operations. The Group strictly adhere to relevant regulations
and laws, such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, the Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance,
Laws of Hong Kong, and the Criminal Law of the PRC.

To facilitate the identification of suspected cases of corruption,
money laundering and other misconducts, the Group has
developed a whistle-blowing policy as stated in our staff
handbook. Employees are prohibited from accepting or offering
any advantages, including but not limited to rewards, gifts, fees,
loans, services, from or to any clients, suppliers or person having
a business relationship with the Group. In the event that they
identify any irregularities, staff can report to senior management
or the audit committee of the Group as they see fit, and we will
protect the identity of the whistleblower. Detailed investigation on
the reported event shall be conducted and would be followed by
appropriate actions according to the result.
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The tendering process is vital to our business and all tendering
documents are kept confidential and restricted to concerned
parties only. It must be done in a fair manner in order to protect
the interest of the Group and our clients. Employees responsible
for tendering must comply with the Competition Ordinance,
Laws of Hong Kong, refraining themselves exchanging or
communicating any sensitive information with competitors,
participating in price-fixing, imposing restrictions on clients, and
abusing the dominant market position.

Due to the pandemic situation in the Reporting Period, the
Group provided our employees with a wide range of corruption
prevention guides and training resources developed by The
Corruption Prevention Department of Independent Commission
Against Corruption through internal email. The event aimed to
help our employees to understand the basics of anti-corruption
laws and uphold a high standard of integrity.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group in relation to bribery, extortion,
fraud, and money laundering.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

We are committed to supporting the community by incorporating
social participation and contribution into our strategic
development. We believe that this will nurture a sound corporate
culture and good practices in the Group. We will continue to
adhere to our core philosophy of “Building a Green World” and the
ideology of “green building and green life” with quality, innovation
and effectiveness and achieve our business expansion.
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In April 2008, the Environmental Protection Department of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
launched the Cleaner Production Partnership Programme in
collaboration with the Economic and Information Commission
of Guangdong Province to encourage and facilitate Hong Kong-
owned factories in Hong Kong and Guangdong to adopt cleaner
production technologies and practices, thereby contributing to
improving the environment. One of our subsidiaries, Huizhou
Precast Building Materials Co. Ltd., has extended its continuous
partnership in the programme for years. The Group will continue
efforts to make a positive contribution to a cleaner environment by
reducing emissions.

With a focus to contribute towards the work safety area, the
Group made donations to the Hong Kong General Building
Conference that aim to enhance safety awareness through
experience sharing and encourage management and frontline staff
to implement a safe system of work.

The Group shall keep abreast latest trends and best practices
related to environmental protection at construction sites, and
workers’ health and safety. We also encourage employees to
actively participate in community and voluntary work to further the
benefits of local communities and render assistance to the needy.
Meanwhile, the Group has strengthened its ties and ensured
continuous communication with members of the community
where it operates, in an effort to advocate a caring and serving
spirit.
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

Air Emissions

RABERE

SR BE Y

Nitrogen Oxide (NO,)
Sulphur Oxide (SO,)
Particulate Matter (PM)

AA1LY (NO)
e e (SO,
FERLYD (PM)

kg T52 556.46 493.09
kg T 0.71 0.65
kg 5= 50.10 43.86

GHG Emissions

Unit (CO,
equivalent)

Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1)
EEFRRERERER (SEE1)
GHG emissions from mobile
combustion sources
(CO, equivalent emissions)
TRENIRGEIR 80 = RASBE
(Z&8EHE 280

Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)

BEREEEHE (S5E 2)
Electricity purchased from
power companies”®

WEHRRBEMNEN

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3)

Hib s ($8E 3)

Paper waste disposed at landfills

REIHERARER

Electricity used for processing fresh
water and sewage by government
department

B ERPIE A J1 R 3R Rk J 57K

Carbon Dioxide (CO,)

— &1kl (CO,)
Methane (CH.,)
Bt (CH,)

Nitrous oxide (N,O)
f/tEAR (N,O)

Carbon Dioxide (CO,)

—SAbHE (COy)

Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
—&1khix (CO,)
Carbon Dioxide (CO,)

—S/bHE (COy)

tonne 114.60 105.59
7
kg 107.23 69.66
T
tonne 5.00 4.93
]
tonne 136.40 235.86
]
tonne 1.41 0.23
7
kg 39.73 37.74
T
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Resources Consumption

BRH*E

Electricity Consumption MEE kWh 252,013.83 317,416.96
FEA
kWh/ 2,571.57 1,350.71
employee
TR
(==
Water Consumption FAKE m’ 129.00 66.90
AV
m*/employee 1.32 0.28
SRS
EE
Paper Usage R E kg 293.50 230.49
Fr
kg/employee 3.00 0.98
FTr/1BE

Non-hazardous Waste Produced

BEBRYNES

Construction waste intensity BERYEE tonne/ 1.71 412
work order
Wi,
THERI =
Construction waste EERRERY) tonne 1,656.41 7,217.44
98
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By Gender
Male
Female

By Age Group

18 — 30 years old
31 - 40 years old
41 - 50 years old
51 - 60 years old
Over 60 years old

By Geographical Region
Hong Kong
The PRC

By Employee Category
Senior Management
Middle Management
Entry Level

BIERIE D
S

ogks

BRERARE 2
18 £ 30 5%
31 £ 40 5%
41 2 50 5%
51 & 60 5%
60 BRIA =

®iEE S
BB
P

RESERE S
BREEE
PIREIRE
MHRET

Total Workforce
No. of People
in 2022

BTHAH

-

AB

77
21

31
26
23
16

62
36

13
11
74

Total Workforce
No. of People
in 2021

BT HE

14
61
71
68
21

86
149

16
33
186

66 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EEZEREBRAT



ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL

AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

RE - g RERWRE

Employment Turnover Employment Turnover
in 2022 in 2021
TEIFREERAER T —FREERKER
No. of Turnover No. of Turnover
People Rate People Rate
A K= AZ MR R
By Gender RERE D
Male B 21 27% 30 15%
Female e 6 28% 4 11%
By Age Group RERARE D
18 — 30 years old 18 & 30 5% 7 100% 6 43%
31 -40 years old 31 & 40 5% 12 39% 2 3%
41 - 50 years old 41 =50 3%, 4 15% 16 23%
51 - 60 years old 51 2 60 &% 3 13% 10 15%
Over 60 years old 60 BRbA £ 1 6% 0 0%
By Geographical Region Bt EE 5D
Hong Kong BB 16 30% 9 10%
The PRC Fh 11 26% 25 17%

Work Injury Statistics

TE#HE
Number of work-related T1ERE1R case(s) 14 0 0 0
fatalities mit B =14
Rate of work-related fatalities R T {E@R percentage 0% 0% 0%
oL T AL & Btk
Number of reported accidents &I E N B case(s) 1F 4 3 2
(sick leave > 3 days) (BB >3K)
Days lost due to work injury AT {8184% day(s) A 341 397 152
TER#
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By Gender
Male
Female

By Category
Senior Management
Middle Management
Entry Level

RAERIBIS
Bt
st

®RER &S
SREEE
HRERRE
IFET

Average
training hours
completed

in 2022

No. of Hours
—=E=E_—
T E TR

A R
NRFE

3.05
1.07

0.27
3.41
2.92

Average
training hours
completed

in 2021

No. of Hours
= —F
FHE T
153110 84
NS

1.61
0.43

0.00
2.45
1.37

By Gender
Male
Female

By Category
Senior Management
Middle Management
Entry Level

ZHR & D
EElks
7%

RERE D
BREREE
RREEE
IHFET

Percentage of
employees
being trained
in 2022
Rate

g2
YRS
HAL
[r

88%
12%

3%
18%
79%

Percentage of
employees
being trained
in 2021

Rate

RS
Bk
a3

93%
7%

0%
17%
83%
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Number of Suppliers

by Geographical Region it EE 5 LERE R

Hong Kong BE 86 68

The PRC =s] 25 6

Europe &M 2 1
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RiE  HEBERERARESD

GOVERNANCE CONTENT INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, A& IRBEEBBES X HMER R RIEFH
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 20 M RAIMTEE208) [3R1E - & REAWME
to the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock #E35|] & - TRBLIMIES|IEEBEHBIET
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The following table provides “FIJE E &) — A2 #: 55 & BASRE BT ([
and overview of the general disclosures and key performance &EXIER]) WHIIMEEBEERZ R E
indicators (“KPIs”) of various aspects under each subject area, ENSKIEMHERESNHAA ©

which are either cross-referenced to the relevant chapters of the

Report or supplementing the Report with additional information.

Description Reference Remark
b 8Z Bt

Aspect A1: EMISSIONS
EBEAT : HHY

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; Protecting the
and (b) compliance with relevant Environment
laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

—REE ERRSRAEREIN KR REEE
S - BEREEEENN
EAZH  @BE 5 R(0)ETHE
FAEEATERIERER RN
HER -
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Aspect A1: EMISSIONS

EBEA1: Y
KPI A1.1

RRENIERAL

KPI A1.2

FRRENIEEAL2

KPI A1.3

BEEMIERAL3

KPI A1.4

FARENIEEAL4

KPI A1.5

HRAMERALS
KPI A1.6

BRANIEERALG

The types of emissions and
respective emissions data.

BER A TEAR S AR BRI EBUE

Greenhouse gas emissions in total

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BERBESNE (CAREETE) K&
(Ef) BE (WASELES -
FIERERTE)

Total hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

MELAEBENAE CAETE)
B (A0EM) 2 (MG B
8 « SEREE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FRELEEERMEE AEE)
K (nEH) B (A ELE
& BEREAHE)

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

AUREBERE VR HE R TSGR o

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.

WERIE A E N EEEEYN A
MEEEENEENRAERR o
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Remark

-3

Reference
X

Emissions

PER

Emissions

BER

N/A We do not generate
hazardous waste in our
operations.

TiEA BMELEPWREER
EREEY) o

Waste Management

REYE IR

Waste Management

EEYE IR

Waste Management

REEYE IR



Description

i

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES

EmA2: ERER

General Disclosure

—RIEE
KPI A2.1
B AE NI R A2.1
KPI A2.2
BRENIERA2.2
KPI A2.3
BARAEMIERA2.3
KPI A2.4
BAREMIERA2.4

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BERERER (BIEEER
JREH) BOBRER

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RS D NEE R, SEEER

(ﬁuﬁ REl) iEE (LATET
EEETE) RZE (AT EME
- BIERMERTE

KR EAL

Water consumption in total and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BRAKERZE (NAESEUES -
#Eﬂmﬁ#)

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

AL REIR(E R et nt &) K PT1SACR ©

Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

Tt SRERGE AR 7KOR £ 7] A AR

B U RARTTRK st 8 R P E
AR e

Reference

2%

Use of Resources

BIRER

Use of Resources

BREM

Use of Resources

BIRER

Use of Resources

BREM

Use of Resources

BIRER
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Remark

-3

The Group encounters no
issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose.

AR& B SKEUE KR
2 E (I fERE o
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Description Reference Remark

i 2% -3

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES
EHA2: ERER

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for N/A We do not generate
finished products (in tonnes) and, if packaging material waste
applicable, with reference to per unit in our operations.
produced.

BREMEZFEA2S HE@MASEMENGEE (AT TEs BEEET W ARELS
)R (ER) SEESCLE - RNEEMEREY -

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
EBHAS : BERAARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s Environment and
significant impact on the environment  Natural Resources
and natural resources.

—RIKE BREITAHRBERRAREREK  BRELRAER
BEAXENEEK -
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts  Environment and

of activities on the environment and Natural Resources
natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

BRAMIERAS  HAXHEDHRELARERE  RERRAER
BEAFERERDMERGHATEN
178 °

Aspect A4: CLIMATE CHANGE

EHE A4 - RIRE{L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and Climate Change
mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact the
Group, and the actions taken to
manage them.

—REE BRI R EHELRATGEEHAKE  RIREMLC
Eiw ENEARKEFEEENK
» DARERER Y FE 1R 1 ©
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Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT

EEB1 : {EfE

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B1.1

AR ENIEEB.1

KPI B1.2

BRANIEEREB1.2

Information on: (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hour, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti- discrimination, other
benefits and welfare.

BERFHM g E  BEEES - T
TER S - R - TEHRE - ST
b~ RIEBAR AR B At 5538 R AR Y -
@BR K (o) ETHEITABEKX
FENMERLIROINER -

Total workforce by gender
employment type, age group and
geographical region.

TR - BIRER - FicAR Rt
B3 D EEAR

Employee turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical region.

RIER - FcAE R Nt S D HE

SRR o
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Remark
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Reference

2%

Employment and
Labour Practices

BENRSTIER

Employment and
LLabour Practices —
Staff Composition

EBRERLTIER
— BT

Employment and
Labour Practices —
Staff Turnover

BERSTER
— E\I/thgi
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Description
iR

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
EMEB2: @EHEZE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies;
and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employee from occupational
hazards.

—RINE FRRHEZE2THERERRERE
BRBRIEBEN : () BR  K(b)
BTHETABERTZENHERE
BREROINEF

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.

BREREEB2.1  ATEBEMIETHAB LXK -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
BRENIEEB22 RHIGIBATIEAS -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health
and safety measures adopted,
how they are implemented and
monitored.

RMRAERERB2.3 HAMRANBERRELY 2
e - ARARBHITRER XL -

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
FEE B3 : & KEH

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description for
training activities.

— RN E BRARITE B BT LERE AR
RARBEHIERER - B IEE -
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Reference
X

Health and Safety

Health and Safety

EREZ 5
Health and Safety
S EEEs

Health and Safety

Development and
Training

R K IE



Description
it

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
[EE B3 : & RIEI

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees
trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management,

middle management).

RRAMERB31  RURIREERR (eAEERE

FREEES) AONZIIRERSD

Lt °

KPI B3.2 The average training hours
completed per employee by gender

and employee category.

mh ke EERIE D
SEAR AR IR 2

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
BE B4 : % T%A|

BARAANIEEB3.2 BHEE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies;
and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

BRERLEE TR HI55 TH) ¢« (a) X
R RbO)BTHRITABEATE
HAERDER MR G B HY o

—RINE

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review

employment practices to avoid child

and forced labour.

it s B EfME AR E
T Ro&lg5 T o

AR ENIEZB4.1

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to
eliminate such practices when

discovered.

BB E R B BR B RIS
SURTERER Y 2B ©

AR ENMIEIEB4.2
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Remark
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Reference
X

Development and
Training

R K aE

Development and

Training

R K aE

Labour Standards

Labour Standards

AT HER

Labour Standards
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B REARE

Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

[EmEBS : ftrERERE

General Disclosure

—RIEE
KPI B5.1
AR A NIEZB5.1
KPI B5.2
AR ENIEEBS.2
KPI B5.3
AR ENIEEZEBS.3
KPI B5.4
AR ENISEBS.4

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.

EIEHEEANRE M S RMBR

Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

i E DR EREE -

Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

WA R EEENES - 1T
BRREMNNHERKE - ARG
EPIETIT REEERITE

Description of practices used to
identify environmental and social
risks along and supply chain, and
how they are implemented and
monitored.

WA R ERAIRE R g
REHIER - A RARRIRNTT R ER
JIE

Description of practices used to
promote environmentally preferable
products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

W EBE R T E S ARE
B MIRSEVER] - ANARRERIT
REERTTIA °
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Management

Y dgtd

Supply Chain
Management

AR E 2

Supply Chain
Management

HiEsEE R

Supply Chain
Management

HEEEE

Supply Chain
Management

HEHEEE
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Description Reference Remark
it 2% B

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
[EmEB6 : ERmEE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and Product Responsibility
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

—RIRE BRFFRBERMRBHNREZESRERZ EREE
2 BE  BEMEFEARE
KOTDER (@)K + M (o) BT 3%
TTABEAFZENEBER MRS

EE RS o
KPI B6.1 Percentage to total products sold or ~ N/A There were no recalls
shipped subject to recalls for safety concerning the KPI.
and health reasons.
BEENIEEB61 CDEIDEXEREHTPELZE2E  TEH I B RARRSR A UE 1R R
ERIEmmMARKNBE DL Bl S o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service N/A There were no validated
related complaints received how complaints received during
they are dealt with. the Reporting Period.
ERENEEB2 EEENEMMREHRFHREA TEH RiERIEEA - s
NEE 770% - B ERBE ARG °
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Product Responsibility
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
BERENIEEB6S mMEARNRENIERFAN EmEME
Bl -
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance N/A Recall procedures are not
process and recall procedures. relevant to our operations.
BRENEEB4 HIESHRTEENERDKER - TES [l AR B R P & i R
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Description
iR

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
[BmEB6 : ERmEE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and
monitored.

MRENERBES HILEEEERMRERILEEE -
AT RER A ©

Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
EEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies: and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that they have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

—RRE BRIDLLEERE - 91 - M RAE

S8 - (@)K © R (o) MFHBITA
EEAR BN RRATINE
B o

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
for the Reporting Period and the
outcome of the cases.

BREXEEBTY PRSP HETASEHESRSY
WEBEENESHFARFNEE &
FFAAAER ©

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures,

how they are implemented and
monitored.

RMRAERERBT.2 B ERLRERIEZR - ARA
BARIT MEERITR ©
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Reference
X

Product Responsibility

e
So
Tt
y

Anti-Corruption

Anti-Corruption

Anti-Corruption

Remark

-3

There were no concluded
legal cases brought against
the Group.

W EHAEEREHER

KEERAAZEMT ©
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Description Reference Remark
it 2% B

Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
EBEB7: RES

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training  Anti-Corruption
provided to directors and staff.

MREREREBT.S HUAREFRETIRHORERE RES

Al e

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
EMEBS : HtERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement  Giving Back to the
to understand the needs of the Community
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities” interests.

—RiRE BN RSERFRSEMEL OEHE
BFENEREXGESHEE BT
[ M S IR o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Giving Back to the

education, environmental concerns, Community
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

MEEANIEEBS.1 FIEHERE (HE  REEE DHEUE
BIHEFR 2 X 8BE

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money Giving Back to the
or time) to the focus area. Community
BRENEEBS2 EZIHNBMBAZR (NeEXK DHEHE
&) °
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the Reporting
Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in provision of construction services and
components.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a
business review and an indication of likely future developments
in the businesses of the Group, can be found in the Chairman’s
statement and Management Discussion and Analysis as set out in
this annual report. These discussions form part of this directors’
report.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES, PERFORMANCE
AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Details of Environmental Policies, performance and compliance
with laws and regulations are set out in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” in this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognizes that employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to the sustainable development of
the Group is committed to building a close and caring relationship
with its employees and business partners and improving the
quality of services to the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The Group ensures all staff is reasonably
remunerated and regular training courses are provided for its
workers on different types of skills and knowledge for their specific
jobs in the workplace as well as work safety. The Group strives to
motivate its employees with a clear career path and opportunities
for advancement and improvement of their skills.
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The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers
and has ongoing communication with the customers and
suppliers through various channels such as telephone, electronic
mails and physical meetings to obtain their feedback and
suggestions.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in this annual report.

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the Reporting Period.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

As the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 8 June
2023 (Thursday), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 5 June 2023 (Monday) to 8 June 2023 (Thursday)
(both days inclusive) for the said AGM or any adjournment thereof.
All transfer of the Company’s shares together with relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office no later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 June
2023 (Friday) in order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at
the AGM (or any adjournment thereof). The share registrar and
transfer office is at:

Address: Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F
148 Electric Road, North Point
Hong Kong

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the five financial years are set out in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2022 and details of the acquisition of subsidiaries
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 December
2022 was 1,010,605,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of movements of the share capital and the share premium
of the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in note
26 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the Group. The
remunerations of the Directors are determined with reference to
the economic situation, the market condition, the responsibilities
and duties assumed by each Director as well as their individual
performance.

RESERVES

Details of the reserve of the Group are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity in this annual report.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has no
reserves available for distribution, as calculated under the
provision of section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, and in
accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 of Cayman Islands,
inclusive of share premium, share-based payment reserve, special
reserve and retained earnings/accumulated losses.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted on 2 August 2014 (the “Date of
Adoption”) are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report. The Scheme will remain in force
for a period of ten years commencing on the Date of Adoption
and shall expire at the close of business on the business day
immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless
terminated earlier by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain the best
available personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees
(full-time and part-time), Directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents customers, business
partners and services providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms
as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time),
Director, consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier,
agent, customer, business partner or services provider of the
Group, options to subscribe for such number of shares of the
Company as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme. The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of
any option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may
be, the independent non-executive Directors) from time to time
on the basis of his contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the number of outstanding
share options under the Scheme is 6,200,000 options,
representing 0.61% of the total issued Shares. During the
Reporting Period, none of share options was granted, exercised,
cancelled and lapsed.

The maximum number of entitlement to Shares of each
grantee under the Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of the issued Shares. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

BREsE

REZZ—MENAZR ([RGB ) FRne
AATIERRE S ([ZETE ) FBENAE
WV e BRI 28 » ZAt B ERA
BHE BB TFAE  BRFERRAE
FEARRABEREREL - BRIRERZET
Eim B RS K A RS RS AR ER o

ZET B E ARSI MRBEREFHAR - MA
SEES (2BRER) EF #B@A-
B piEE AR fER - KREF
F - BEBHERGHERIRMHRRINEE A
KB AR BER AN A -

EX2RBBREARRESNRR [
AEBETAREE (2RRB)  BF - #EH
ARER - AAREEEREZRR - A%
BEoHE - ABE - HEm K2 F
F - BEBHIRBHEERRLBERE &
mEAREZTENGESREEST SR kR
EEENARBIRND - T € (HFILIEH
TES  GERAME) Al NERERER 2 R
EHAREERRMIERAEL A RELN
BERUREREBRIESHRENER -

RZEBZZFRZF—F+HA=+—
B ZaglBTHRITEBERESRE R
6,200,00017) * 2 &2 EITRNAI0.61% °
REERANEBRED R - 1768 -
e

PMER+ @A BEAR - RIFZET 8 S AR
ARRERD (BREITE - i REARTT
ErfERE) 8IR T HBBEE BHITRMAH
B 1% » (EAATERH L 1% AR IR BB I IR 78
RIZEGEM LR AIBRSBIRILAE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % #

83



84

/vTMRECTORS REPORT

EEeWmE

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
grant of the relevant options, there is no performance target which
must be achieved before any of the options can be exercised.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to our Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant of the option.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Liu Yingjie
Ms. Zhou Jin

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Cao Hongmin
Mr. Chan Chi Pan
Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter

The incumbent Directors’ biographical details are set out in the

section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this report.
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Information regarding directors’ emoluments is set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules has been
received from each of the independent non-executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

No Director has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation. All Directors of the Company
were appointed for a period from one to three years and subject
to retirement from office and re-election at the AGM of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.

Each of the executive Directors shall also be entitled to
discretionary bonus to be determined by the Board based on,
among other things, the performance of the individual directors
and the overall financial position of the Group, and is subject
to the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

A.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2022, interests or short positions of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company in the shares
(the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or (ii) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or (i) pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

()  Long Position in the Shares and underlying Shares

Capacity/

Name of Director Nature of interest

EEnA 510, HmHE

Zhou Jin Beneficial owner

ERmlAA

(i) Interests in debentures of the Company

Name of
Chief Executive

Capacity/
Nature of interest

FEITHRABHA

B, HERME

Lai Xiaoliang Beneficial owner
FERE ST BEHEEBA

Note: the fixed rate bonds are freely transferrable and not
convertible to the Shares of the Company

86 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EiEiERERAE

A.

Fixed rate bond (Note)
EEMNEES (A7)

held/interested in
FiEaE, BEERNR G
RiEBERGEB

B EREERER

EERFETHRAEBRAQAARE
MECEER G - BERG R EREE
MEER AR

RZE-_—F+-A=+—H ' ARQF
EENTETBABRARA HHEAE
BEE (ERRBABEMESNERES
KEAEESG) ([ FHFRBEMRE]) EXV
) mfsty ([Ro)) - EEERR G K&
BREEAR () BIEZSF REEEGIEXV
HE7 R8N EAEME AR T RERZFT
WERMAE (BREBREESMEER
B BG4 B E SR (E R B B0
wmRKE) k(i) IRIZEFH R HE (&5
55 352 &5 Al IO a& 11 AT it & 52 il e e
m OR B Bk (i) B IE GEM _E AR BIE
5.46 £5.67 1§ 7AH & AN A7) KB A BT
Mg AR IT

() PROREERGNER
Number of Shares
and underlying Shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
B
BRBED

284,500,000 28.15%

(i) REQFEEENER
Type/Class of
debentures

Amount of Bonds
held/interest in
s HAERER
HNESEHE

HK$5,800,000
5,800,000 77T
Bet: ZEENEREHFA TEHE
& NAIER AR R ERN



(i)  Short Position
As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
or the chief executive nor their associates had any
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2022 and
so far as is known to the Directors, no person other than
certain Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register of substantial Shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

(iiy K&
R-—E-——#+=-_H=+—8"
MEESATETHRABLESE
)i NG A NN e = e s G B
EEBRD - BER D EEE
RIEATRAR

FERRREMA TR RAEEA
ROHERER AR

BRI EEIN R2E-—F 1=
A=T—BARBEEMAL HEA
T (RRRETEEHTIZTHRAER
SN WA R BRI MR A A
RIEE S K S 15D 5 336 RN AR A
FEME ZRRA MRS E RN
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Number of Shares
and underlying Shares percentage of

Approximate

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature held/interested in shareholding
Fiiss HERRNRG B

RERERE 273 REBROEE BERESH

Huang Cheng Beneficial owner 188,620,000 18.66%

=K EnEEA

Zhu Zhou Beneficial owner 129,000,000 12.76%

KM EmEAA
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 29.1% (2021: approximately 30.7%)
of the total revenue of the Group and the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 8.6% (2021: approximately
12.2%) of the total revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules), or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 41.8% (2021: approximately 58.4%)
of the total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier of the
Group accounted for approximately 16.7% (2021: approximately
23.0%) of the total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules), or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

MAJOR SUBCONTRACTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest
subcontractors accounted for approximately 87.1% (2021:
approximately 89.3%) of the total subcontracting of the Group
and the largest subcontractor of the Group accounted for
approximately 27.4% (2021: approximately 35.7%) of the total
purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules), or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest subcontractors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interests directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
associates, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions of the Group
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements do not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuity connected transaction”
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and are fully
exempted from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all of them have
confirmed that neither themselves nor their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had held any
position or had interest in any businesses or companies that
were or might be competing with the business of the Group, or
gave rise to any concern regarding conflict of interests during the
Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions of the Code except for the
deviations from code provisions C.1.8 and F.2.2 of the Code
which is explained in the section headed “Compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code” of the Corporate Governance
Report.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the required standards of dealings set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors in respect
of the shares of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”). Having
made specific enquiries with the Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Code of Conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Reporting
Period. The Company has not taken out for insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The reasons for this decision is elaborated on page 17
of the Corporate Governance Report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT EHRABIFRE

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on information B2 EFTA L ERBBAR RN ARER
that is publicly available to the Company, at least 25% of the RAMHEBH » KA B HITRARF D
Company’s issued share capital were held by the public as at the 25% HABALTHE -

date of this report.

AUDITOR = AR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (ZHONGHUI ANDA”) was the HIEZESTMEHKAR AR ([FEZ
auditor of the Company, which shall retire in the forthcoming AGM ¥ |) AR 2D - 15 FEE R EF K
and, being eligible, offer itself for reappointment. A resolution &RT @ HHEHFAEERITBEEREFAE L
for the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA as auditors of the —JEEEE(T - AR AR EERRAF AR

Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. EEBEFEZAPERERNATNIZEENM
REBE o

On behalf of the Board REEFE

Liu Yingjie =

Chairman EIEF

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023 /A —E-=F=HA=+mMA
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
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ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
Glory Flame Holdings Limited
BREZERARDA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Glory
Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to
167, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Prepayment (note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the consolidated statement
of financial position included a fully impaired prepayment balance,
which was made previously to a supplier in the construction
business. For the year ended 31 December 2021, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$21,317,000 was recognised.
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The Group and the supplier have entered into a supplemental
agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) on 16 March 2021,
which stated that (i) The supplier would partially refund RMB7.0
million to the Group by March 2021; (i) Should the Group be
unable to enter into any new business with the supplier before 31
August 2021, the supplier would partially refund another RMB7.0
million to the Group; and (jii) Should the Group be unable to enter
into any new business with the supplier before 31 December
2021, the rest amount of RMB12.1 million would be refunded to
the Group.

The first partial refund of RMB7.0 million was received by the
Group in March 2021 in accordance with the terms as stated
in the Supplemental Agreement. Yet, the second partial refund
and the final refund of totaling RMB19.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$21,317,000) were both defaulted. There was
no further development for this prepayment balance during the
reporting period.

Due to the above uncertainties, the management is not able to
provide further evidences in justifying the sufficiency, adequacy
and extent of the impairment loss being recognised. Accordingly,
we are not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidences
to ascertain the recoverability of the aforesaid balances as at 31
December 2022 and 2021. There is no other satisfactory audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves whether the
aforesaid balance of HK$nil are fairly stated as at 31 December
2022 and 2021, respectively. Consequently, we are not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidences on whether the profit
or loss effect on the provision for impairment loss on aforesaid
balance of approximately HK$21,317,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 is properly stated, respectively.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might have
a consequential effect on the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 and
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and
2021, and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated
financial statements.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which states that the Group incurred loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$10,329,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at 31 December 2022,
the Group had net liabilities of approximately HK$825,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section and the Material Uncertainty Related
to Going Concern Section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of trade and other receivables for
recoverability. Apart from the prepayment mentioned in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion, this recoverability review is significant to
our audit because the balance of trade and other receivables
of approximately HK$71,321,000 as at 31 December 2022 is
material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group’s recoverability review involves application of judgement
and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits
and credit periods to customers and debtors;

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers and debtors;

- Evaluating the Group’s recoverability assessment;
- Assessing ageing of the debts;
- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers and debtors;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the customers and
debtors; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s recoverability review for trade and
other receivables is supported by the available evidence.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
B % B ED RS

B R HMERFRIE
BREGE B TREMFE20
BEEEHE S MNEMEWRFIESE 2 AJlkE
REETIH BARBERNERME
IEAN - AT N B FRE R E ] gE HIR M AE R
EECEFLESEE AREBE_T -
+ZA=+—BME S XEMERFIELE R
#771,321,0008 7L B4r & B s mzx EE ML
Do BN BEBEZAIKEREENRS KX
ERHE 2 AW LAMEET AR -
EERAZEREFEE (HREHE)

- iHE ERERTEPMERAGER
EREEHRZER

- iHh EREREPLEEAZMEER
R Hresk

- FHME EEEZAREERERE

- FHMABEBZERE

- FHERPRERAZEE:

- FMARPRERAZHEREEEE: X

- iHMh EEBESEVBHRREMEER
[\ 2 $FE -

BERR EEEEZNEMEYFIEZ
AR EE R RE SR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % #

95



96

7

7 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RV Gl

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information in the Company’s annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidence about the certain prepayment. Accordingly,
we are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is
materially misstated with respect to this matter.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s
website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/Our-
views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P05988

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #4r&tEm
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

RE MR FEAE

HE-Z-—F+-A=+—

BIEFE

Revenue 1'@N 7 118,533 98,970
Cost of sales SHE AR (83,142) (74,324)
Gross profit EF 35,391 24,646
Interest revenue M EYA 7 5
Other income and other gains E{‘M&)\&E{‘M 82%

or losses, net 8 8,542 1,906
Impairment losses on various assets XIE 5% Z,)jdﬁ)!é‘ﬂa (4,612) (21,881)
Administrative and other operating ﬁEﬁZ NE & ERK

expenses (35,939) (36,275)
Operating profit/(loss) EIEER ( 3,389 (31,599)
Finance costs B ﬁX 10 (6,412) (5,847)
Loss before income tax BRETERAIEE (3,023) (37,446)
Income tax credits FTiSEIR % 11 364 262
Loss for the year FREE 12 (2,659) (37,184)
Other comprehensive (loss) Hit2m|

/income: i8) IR
Items that may be reclassified BEEHIAEZZIEE

to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating mEGINE B ETER

foreign operations (1,456) 481
Foreign currency translation reserve HE e E A R

classified to profit or loss DR B 2 INE ?ﬁ‘l%ﬁ #

upon deregistration of subsidiaries 522 250
Total other comprehensive (loss) FREMEZE (5HE)

/income for the year AL ON L (934) 731
Total comprehensive FAE2MH

loss for the year EEAE (3,593) (36,453
(Loss)/profit for the year UTALTEGEFER (BE)

attributable to: A

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ YN (10,329) (36,846)

Non-controlling interests FEE R 7,670 (338)

(2,659) (37,184)

Total comprehensive (loss) DTATEMAFRZE (BE)

/income for the year YA ON -

attributable to:

Owners of the Company UNNIE DN (10,943) (36,040)

Non-controlling interests FEPE R o 7,350 (413)

(3,593) (36,453)

Loss per share sEREE 15

Basic (HK cents per share) EX (SBRABIIET) (1.02) (3.65)

Diluted (HK cents per share) #E (FRRLABIIED) (1.02) (3.65)

98 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EEZERBRAT



CONSOLIDATED 454 AR &
STATEMENT OF #- % 7r7r=rr

FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
—=E_= =B —%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FETT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 16 12,863 14,311
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17 12,484 10,717
Goodwill fEEs 18 938 938
26,285 25,966

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 3,162 3,140
Trade and other receivables Z 5 N E M el FiE 20 71,321 50,546
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR & Mk 21 36,254 37,127
110,737 90,813
Current liabilities REAE

Trade and other payables B 5 N HEhERIE 22 47,492 36,524
Borrowings RN 23 46,928 45,800
Lease liabilities HEaE 24 4,287 3,425
Tax liabilities MIEBE 20 47
98,727 86,220
Net current assets REBEEEE 12,010 4,593
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERGEERE 38,295 30,559

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings EEN 23 29,250 18,450
Lease liabilities HEaFE 24 9,373 8,341
Deferred tax liabilities EERITEAE 25 497 369
39,120 27,160
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) EEFE (825) 3,399
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Are BRI ILR

At 31 December 2022
WZZE-_—_F+-_RA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Capital and reserves EXNFEE

Share capital N 26 10,106 10,106
Reserves =B (11,855) (912)

Equity attributable to owners PAYNEIE PPN oy
of the Company (1,749) 9,194
Non-controlling interests JEPESREES 924 (5,795)
TOTAL (DEFICIT)/EQUITY mO(Ea) R (825) 3,399

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 167 were 5 98ZE 167 AZ &M MKRDEEETEN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on —ET_=F=H— +E B RT3

24 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTINEERERES
Liu Yingjie Zhou Jin

%'J I\\\

Director Director

EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED #4r&#EzsEEx
STATEMENT QF #==#==fi=A=t riss
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Attributable to owners of the Company
KAAREAER
Foreign
Share-hased currency Non-
Share Share Merger payment translation Other  Accumulated controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-Total interests equity
WRARH HE

RE  REGRE  aKEE  HEcRE  AREE  HMEBR  ZHEE Mt fERER Lo

HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

ThL TR Thn A AT Thn T ThL AT T

Balance at 1 January 2021 A-F=-%£-A-§

28 0106 %3 B0 240 P (6 Qs B BX) 98
Total comprehensive Ep2ElL/ (B
income/oss) g
for e year - - - - 806 - oM 604 My B
Balance at 3 December  #=%=-% 0106 2889 BA0 200 (78 (6 (B4 4 G 339
2021 t2A=t-RZh

Balance at 1 January 2022 H-Z--%-5-§

b 10106 268,93 15,800 2480 (1,785) (1672)  (284689) 9,194 (5,795) 3399
Totel compreensive EnzER\/ (B
oss)incomeforthe year 2% - - - - (614) - (10329  (10943) 1,350 (3,599)
Deregistration of subsiclaries  Frir B A - - - - - - - - (631) (631)

Balance at 31 December R=Z==%
2022 tZR=t-RzEH 10106 268,953 15,800 2480 (2,399 (1672 (205017) (1,749) 924 (825)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
—=E-=

HK$°000

Cash flows from operating
activities

REFHREZHERE

FRET

2021

HK$’000
TET

Loss before income tax BR TSR A ES 18 (3,023) (37,446)
Adjustments for: KATIRE :
Depreciation of property, Y R NMRBITE

plant and equipment 5,369 5,064
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 4,941 3,975
Interest income FLEMA 7 (%)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade 1 [E1 & 5 & H b fElkL

and other receivables FIBZRERE (87) (515)
Recovery of other receivables W Bl 38 1 48 8 2 E At

previously written-off FEW FR I8 (5,816) -
Written off of trade and WIEE 5 & EH A

other receivables FEMRFIE 23 -
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE BEK

plant and equipment St 2 WS (96) 8)
Loss on deregistration BRI B AR M 2 BB

of subsidiaries 1,224 250
Impairment losses on EBEEEZRERE

various assets 4,612 21,881
Interest expenses FMEMRAX 6,412 5,847
Operating profit/(loss) before BEESEBAIKE

working capital changes =R (ER) 13,552 (957)
Change in inventories FERE (244) 1,495
Change in trade and B 5 & E M RN IBIG R

other receivables (24,244) 580
Change in trade and B 5 M E A FER IR

other payables 9,989 6,470
Net cash (used in)/generated from &K&5E8 (FiA) EEX2HLTE

operations activities (947) 7,588
Lease interest paid BHEEFNE (660) (606)
Income tax refund ERFTEHL 42 181
Net cash (used in)/generated from &K&5Eg (FiA) EEX2HESTEAE

operating activities (1,565) 7,163
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Cash flows from investing
activities
Purchases of property,

REZDFBZHERE

BEME - BFEKRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

,\/\

E/%fi/}lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-—_F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2022
—E—_C

HK$’000
TRT

2021

HK$'000
THET

plant and equipment (3,575) (902)
Proceeds from disposals of property, — HEWE - R &L E

plant and equipment Z BB 96 -
Net interest received BFI B FEE 7 5
Net cash used in investing RETEBFIAZRETEHE

activities (3,472) (897)
Cash flows from financing MEETEAE2EERE

activities
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEaRE (4,735) (3,724)
Borrowings raised g5y 11,963 -
Interest paid on other borrowings HEEREHF A (2,803) (2,700)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFEELE " (FTA)

financing activities ZBREFHE 4,425 (6,424)
Net decrease in cash and RERASEEY

cash equivalents ZFERD (612 (158)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMNE I 3k & &) o~ 522 (261) 35
Cash and cash equivalents FUNZHEREASEEY

at beginning of the year 37,127 37,250
Cash and cash equivalents atend FRZHRER

of the year, Represented BE&ZEEY - ETR

by bank and cash balances HEsEeR 36,254 37,127
Analysis of cash and cash REeERBAESEBYZIW

equivalents
Bank and cash balances R1T MERTT A AR 36,254 37,127
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NOTESTOTHE 4R & M 53R KM oE
CONSOL'DATED BE-T-—F+—A=t+—RIEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 April 2014
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong is Suite 821, 8th Floor, Ocean Centre, Habour
City, 5 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$10,329,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and as at 31 December 2022,
the Group has net liabilities of approximately HK$825,000.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Directors have been undertaking a number of plans
and measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial
position, including:

()  the Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projection prepared by management, which covered
a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2022. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due and
carry on its business without a significant curtailment
of operations not less than twelve months from 31
December 2022. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis;
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GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

(i)  the borrower of the other loan executed a letter
agreed not to demand for repayment for other loan
with principal of HK$40,000,000 and the accrued
interest until the Group can meet all the other financial
obligations of the Group and willing to negotiate with
the Group when the terms mature;

(i)~ the holder of the bonds payables executed a letter
agreed not to demand for repayment for bonds
payables with principal of HK$5,800,000 and the
accrued interest until the Group can meet all the
other financial obligations of the Group and willing to
negotiate with the Group when the terms mature; and

(iv) the Group shall implement cost-saving measures
to maintain adequate cash flows for the Group’s
operations.

Based on the cash flow projection of the Group and having
taken into account the available financial resources of the
Group and the above measures, the Directors consider that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the foreseeable future, and accordingly, are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements to adjust the value of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively.

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B AR T

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—F+-A=t+—RHILFE
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/_NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

=1

BT —F+-A=1+—HIEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2022. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to
state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a material impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities
that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR A MBS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

=1

BT —F+-A=1+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ERe MM

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-F-—
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FHZRA=t—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

- Plant and machinery 1 25%
- Furniture and fixtures 1 20%
- Motor vehicles 10% - 25%

: 20% — 50%
: 20% — 33%

- Decoration
- Office equipment

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e BTG ER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T_—_F+-A=t-HAL%E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land and buildings
- Offices : 5% — 50%
- Warehouse 1 50%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or
otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term
leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or
less. Low-value assets are assets of value below US$5,000.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in-first-
out method. The cost of finished goods comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all
production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of investments at
fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under financial
assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables)
are classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of that financial
instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade
receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference to
the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over time
if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the product or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Employee benefits

()  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i)  Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of productions processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are reviewed annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets
except goodwill, inventories and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ERe MM

For the year ended 31 December 2022

=1

BT —F+-A=1+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR e B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

=1

BT —F+-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
Directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. This involves critical judgements.
Details are explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(@ Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be
required.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and depreciation and impairment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of similar nature and functions. The Group
will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assests are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined with reference to the present value of
estimated future cash flows. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected or there are unfavourable
events and change in facts and circumstance which
result in revision of future estimate cash flows, a
material impairment loss may arise.
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7 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e BTG ER M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances
and trade and other receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited

because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event that counterparties fail to perform their
obligations at the end of the reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables. In order to minimise credit risk,
the Directors review the recoverable amount of each
individual receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable
receivable. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period
by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (if available);

- actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower; and

—  significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T_—_F+-A=t-HAL%E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HKEREBER (&)
(Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)y EERB (&)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how the
loss provision is determined for each of the categories.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category and
adjusts for forward looking data.

Category Definition

=Wl E&R

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay
B4 ERORRIE - RGeS

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk

NEE EERBEELM
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it

maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities
is as follow:

6.
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MHERERE (&)

(c) RENERR

AEBHRSEMERB AL
BHRRBECHE  UEREH
HmERBE SRR BNEESK
REHAZARDESTE - A5E
TREBEZIBERINTAT

AEESBE R HHERHIN
o

Total
Carrying undiscounted ~ Within 1 year

Between 1 Between 2

amounts cashflow orondemand and2years  and5years
AURRS 15/5,

HEfE ikt BEX 1EE2E  2EE5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAT AL AL AL AL

At 31 December 2022 W-B--£+-F=+-H
Trade and other payables Lo REMEMNTE 47,492 47,492 47,492 - -
Borrowings E 16,178 91,329 50,174 - 41,155
123,670 138,821 97,666 - 41,155

At 31 December 2021 W-E--E+-B=1-R
Trade and other payables BARAMENE 36,524 36,504 36,504 - -
Borowings 5 64,250 74020 50,190 23,830 -
100,774 110,544 86,714 23,830 -

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
on its fixed interest-rate borrowings. The Group is
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on its bank
balances because these balances carrying interest at
prevailing rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to fair value interest rate
and cash flow interest rate risk. The Directors monitor
the Group’s exposure on an ongoing basis and will
consider hedging the interest rate should the need
arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—_F+-A=1+—RHLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HEERER (&)

(Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued) (d) FEmEp ()
The Directors consider that the Group’s exposure EERE ARTMHAEEEA
to cash flow interest rate risk is low as the financial BEEZHBEEIR WAL
impact arising from the changes of market interest B P R 2 IR & i 2 A KA R
rate is insignificant, therefore, no sensitivity analysis 1K - Bt 25| 8URE DT o
presented.

(e) Fair values (e) ~¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets RERE T BRA KRR AEE
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated JeMmEERSRAGBECREAE
statement of financial position approximate their HEERB A FEEE

respective fair values.

() Categories of financial instruments at 31 H R+ZHA=+—Hz&®mIA
December k=]
2022 2021
—=s-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Financial assets: SREE -
Financial assets at amortised cost TRESHK AT E 2
(including cash and cash equivalents) eHMEE (BREAEeR
WEEEY) 103,584 85,969
Financial liabilities: SRISE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R ATTEZ
TRIBE 123,670 100,774
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7. REVENUE 7.

The Group’s revenue is analysed as follows:
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LON
AEEZ AR -

2022 2021
—s-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Provision of concrete demolition and RMUER LR E &

construction engineering services R TR 69,377 56,141

Manufacturing and trading of BEREEREA AR
prefabricated precast construction AR 49,156 42,829
118,533 98,970

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

2021

HK$'000
FRET

HK$'000
TERT

Timing of revenue recognition U A FE SRS RS
At a point in time R —BfE 2, 49,156 42,829
Over time BEE R RA RS 69,377 56,141
118,533 98,970
Construction service fee income EEREERA

The Group provides construction service to the customers.
When the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations of a construction contract can
be measured reasonably, revenue from the contract and
the contract costs are recognised using the percentage
of completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to the
estimated total contract costs for the contract. This method
provides the most reliable estimate of the percentage of
completion.

AEERAEFPREHZERS - BREA
HWBEHB TR ERAKAEFE
i SROBANRAEORATNERTEIA
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BT —F+-A=1T—HIEFE

REVENUE (Continued)

Construction service fee income (Continued)

When the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations of a construction contract cannot
be measured reasonably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that is expected to be
recoverable.

The customers pay the contract prices to the Group
according to the payment schedules as stipulated in the
contracts. If the service rendered by the Group exceeds
the payments, a contract asset is recognised. If the
payments exceed the service rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

The contract price is allocated to the performance
obligations based on the relative stand-alone selling prices
of the performance obligations. The stand-alone selling
prices are determined by applying the expected cost plus a
margin approach.
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8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS OR
LOSSES, NET

8.
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HtW AR Efibifss - F8

2022 2021
—ZE—_— = —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Reversal of impairment O E 5 N EMEKR R TE
loss on trade R EEE
and other receivables 87 515
Recovery of other L[5 A AT 85 ) B At
receivables previously e IR
written-off (@) 5,816 -
Written off of trade and WiEE 5 & EH A
other receivables FEWFRIE (23) -
Net foreign exchange gain PE 5 W 25 F 58 16 14
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE  BEX
plant and equipment Bt 2 Was 96 8
Loss on deregistration of RSB A B
subsidiaries ol % (1,224) (250)
Rental income from sub-letting 2 fHE WA 856 810
Government subsidies B E (b) 1,899 -
Others EHih a) 1,019 809
8,542 1,906

Notes i)

(@  During the year ended 31 December 2019, other receivables @ BEZZE-—NFTZA=1+—HLHF
of RMB5,000,000 from a customer was fully impaired. B RE—BEFPHEMBIGIAA
The Group entered into the legal process during the year R #5,000,000 T 2B EURE - #E
ended 31 December 2019. Approximately RMB5,385,000 —E-NFF+ZRA=+—HLEFE"
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,264,000) (including (i) REEHENEEEF HE_T -
Repayment of other receivable of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent FH+_AZ+—HIFE  BE#RZER
to approximately HK$5,816,000) and (i) retainer fee of I EY 49 A R # 5,385,000 7T (#EE 7
approximately RMB385,000 equivalent to approximately #76,264,0007% 7T) (B 1&() (B & E At
HK$448,000) was received from the court during the year FEY R TE AR ¥ 5,000,000 7T (FHE #
ended 31 December 2022. Hence, the Group reverse the #95,816,000% 7T) K (i) BE A & 4 A
written-off on trade and other receivables during the year R 385,000 7T (F8E 747 448,000 7%
ended 31 December 2022. L)) e At AEEREE=T ==

F+ZA=+—RHILEFEELCH#H
B S REAMEUGRIA -
()  During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group b)) BEZZEZ—_F+ZA=+—HILHF

recognised government grants of approximately
HK$1,397,600 which was related to the Employment
Support Scheme. The Group had to commit to spending the
assistance on payroll expenses, and not to reduce employee
head count below prescribed levels for a specified period of
time as required by the Employment Support Scheme. The
Group did not have any unfulfilled conditions relating to the
Employment Support Scheme during the year. The remaining
government subsidies are awarded to the Group by the
government authority. No condition have been applied on
such government subsidies from the government authority.

B - NREBEREBRAE B
JiF # B #91,397,6008 7T - AEE A
AAEBEDARIESE - BRRBR
REABNERERERBATES
BEABRDEREKFUT - F
A AEEREERERRRESS
H R BITIRIT - RIBRH BB 2R
BUFEBFIE T AR E - BUTEPFIIL &
W% S BUR BY & 5T SLAEAAIERF -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % #

135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T_—_F+-A=t-HAL%E

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 2 EE R
The Group has one (2021: one) reportable segments as AEE—FE(ZTE=—F: —f@) =2
follows: WoEmT -
Construction Provision of concrete demolition and
construction engineering services
and manufacturing and trading of
prefabricated precast construction
FEE RADRE T IR H MR LT RR
A REBGE R BB R AR SEA N

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as those described in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements. Segment profits or
losses do not include interest revenue, income tax expenses
and other unallocated corporate income and expenses.
Segment assets do not include bank and cash balances
and other unallocated corporate assets. Segment liabilities
do not include borrowing, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+_A=+—HILEE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. AIEHR (&)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets AT EHHHIER BERBECE
and liabiltties: BT

Construction

BE
HK$'000
THET
Year ended 31 December 2022: BE-ZE-_—_H#+-HF=+—H
LHEE:

Revenue from external customers REIIMBER 2B 118,533
Segment profit k=il 4,555
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB RERETE 4,887
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 4,217
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net BHRWHIEZRERE - F8 4,525
Additions to segment non-current assets REDEIEMBEE 12,055

At 31 December 2022: R-BZZF+ZA=+—-H8:
Segment assets %%Eﬁﬁz 98,465
Segment liabilities DEEE 48,369

Construction
B
HK$'000
FTAT
Year ended 31 December 2021: BE-ZE--H+-A=+—-HLEE:
Revenue from external customers REIMIER ZMWA 98,970
Segment loss D EEE 24,904
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥  BERREITE 4,537
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 3,251
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net B HRWHRIEORERBE - F8 49
Impairment loss on prepayments and BRNRIBRRZ SES CHERE  F8
trade deposits, net 21,317
Additions to segment non-current assets RNEDEIEREBEE 4,131
At 31 December 2021: R-ZB-_—-F+=-A=+—H8:
Segment assets DEHEE 73,659
Segment liabilities DEEE 36,449
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—_F+-A=1+—RHLEFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HIEHR (&)
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets AIEHoEiEn BERBEZHER
and liabilities:
2021
—E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Profit or loss: Bi
Total profit/(loss) of reportable segments A 2O IR 4,555 (24,904)
(B18) #5
Corporate and unallocated loss NERRDEREE (7,578) (12,542)
Consolidated loss before tax BRI RTAR A B8 (3,023) (37,446)
Assets: EE
Total assets of reportable segments 2O IEER 98,465 73,659
Bank and cash balances R1T MR T BR 36,254 37,127
Corporate and unallocated assets NAREDEEE 2,303 5,993
Consolidated total assets IR BERRE 137,022 116,779
Liabilities: =0
Total liabilities of reportable segments AIERoEaERs 48,369 36,449
Borrowings B 76,178 64,250
Deferred tax liabilities EERITEAE 497 369
Corporate and unallocated liabilities NAREADEEE 12,803 12,312
Consolidated total liabilities HEBERR 137,847 113,380

138 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EEZEREBRAT



9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.

Geographical information:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_Z-—F+-A=t+—RHILFE

7 HRPER ()
@ AR

2022 2021
= —E_—£
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Revenue: WA -
Hong Kong BB 69,377 56,141
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) FEE A RIEFE
( [#E]) 49,156 42,829
118,533 98,970
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based RERBEREERT S - WATIRER

on the locations of the customers.

MZEZS -

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THETT

Non-current assets: FERBEE :
Hong Kong EHE 14,349 11,459
The PRC =5} 11,936 14,507
26,285 25,966

Information about revenue from the Group’s customer
individually contributing over 10% of total revenue of the
Group is as follows:

KER/AEBBRATHKION A LR
Bz BRI ZFERT -

2022

—ZE-=

HK$'000

2021

— B
HK$'000
AT

12,022

# Customer A did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022, the figure
shown was for comparative disclosure purpose only.

No revenue from transactions with a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022.

EEFARBE_Z-_—_F+=-A=+—H1

FEWESAEBBRAIRI0% A EEE -
FTeE R BRI B -

B2 - —"F+-_A=+—HILF
B BEEE IMNERFETR I W
FIAREEBWZE10% A L -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BE WA
2022 2021
== —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEABNE 660 606
Interest on other loan HEEZFE 2,700 2,700
Interest on loan from a director E—REEZEHFE 2,253 1,845
Interest on bond payables &5 FER FIBF B 696 696
Interest on bank borrowings IRITERFE 103 -
6,412 5,847

1. B8

11. INCOME TAX CREDITS

2022 2021
—=E_— —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ENEATTE — HAENE
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBREEE (470) -
Current tax — The PRC BPHAR IR — R
Provision for the year FANEE — 22
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBREEE (22) -
(492) 22
Deferred tax (note 25) EERTE (M5E 25) 128 (284)
Income tax credits FiSHiE & (364) (262)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%)
based on the assessable profit for the year. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 as the Group did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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1. INCOME TAX CREDITS (Continued)

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax credits and loss

before income tax is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_Z-—F+-A=t+—RHILFE

. FrEE (&)

BRITZRRED

HtpBIR 2 EART a2 AR X 2%
AEBEEHAERR ZRITHE &1&
BEMEMFE

PRSI o L RR P15 15 A1 B 18 2 B AR 4N
™~

2022 2021
= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Loss before income tax BRETISELRIES 1B (3,023) (37,446)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% BEBEHRE
(2021: 16.5%) 16.5% 5T 5
(ZF=—%F : 16.5%) (499) 6,179)
Tax effect of income is not taxable BENTIRA Z RIETE (1,318) (159)
Tax effect of expenses are not deductible NIRRT  RIE T 2E 1,004 337
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIEEEZ
T £ 1,148 5,472
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B BAERLCHER
not previously recognised MIBBEMBTE (632) (161)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERERMER Y
not recognised g2 (101) 496
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries I ENCIENEIE s -2 526 (72)
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBEEE (492) -
Income tax credits FTiS T % (364) (262)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/
(crediting) the following:

12. FREE

BIRKSIFR -

AEBFRNEEDTR, (GTA) T

2022 2021
—=E_— —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Cost of inventories sold/services provided HEFS AR MHIRFEHAN 83,142 74,324
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #% - iR RS #ETE 5,369 5,064
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 4,941 3,975
Reversal of impairment loss on trade #EE 5 & H M EWIE
and other receivables ZBIEEE (87) (515)
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries NI R SR 1,224 250
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - BE &
plant and equipment R o W (96) ®)
Impairment losses on various assets BREEZRERBIE
Trade receivables B ZRIGRIE 4,612 564
Prepayments and trade deposits BRNFBELRRZZERE - 21,317
4,612 21,881
Staff costs (including directors’ ETIRA (BIEESE
remuneration — note 13) M — F9RE13)
Salaries, bonus and allowances e~ TEAT R oREL 39,848 40,041
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3Rk & 5T 214K 1,194 1,117
41,042 41,158
Expenses related to short-term lease R HATE SRR 166 241
Auditor’s remuneration A% SR M 700 728
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(a) The remuneration of each director for the year ended

31 December 2022 is set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+_A=+—HILEE

13. EER T BRREHFMAL

(a) B=2_F_—_F+-A=+—H
IFFEEESHMET AT -

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits ~ Share-based scheme
Fee in kind payment  contributions
FooEg HR#A B
fie RENEA ERMNR Bf U a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TR TiEn TiEn TiEn
Executive Directors HEE
. Liu Yingje HEREE = - - - =
Ms. Zhou Jin Zhou Jin X T - 600 - - 600
Independent Non-executive Directors — BU#8/EE
M. Cao Hongmin EAREE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Chan Chi Pan REits 120 - - - 120
M. Li Kar Fa, Peter FRATE 120 - - - 120
360 600 - - 960
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
E-F_CF+t- A=t HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31

13. EERAEBBEHFMAL (&)

BE-_ZE-—F+-A=+—HILEE

December 2021 is set out below: BEFHMETIOT -
Salaries, Retirement
allowances henefits
and benefits Share-hased scheme
Fee in kind payment  contributions
e B DY Eird
ik RENER EBNAR SRl h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tin Tén TEn Tn
Executive Directors HEE
Mr. Ly Yingjie YEAsrs - - - _ -
Ms. Zhou Jin ZhouJn Tt - 600 - - 600
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHE:
Mr. Gao Hongmin BHRE 190 - - - )
M. Chan Chi Pan REELE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter TERRE 120 - - - 120
360 600 - - 960

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2021: Nil). Neither the chief executive nor any of the
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+_A=+—HILEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERIEBESFMAL (B)

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (by EEREFMAL

No director has been included as the five highest
paid individuals in the Group during the year (2021:
Nil). The emoluments of each of the individuals, two
individuals falling within the band of HK$2,500,001
to HK$3,000,000 and the other individuals falling
within the band of Nil to HK$1,000,000 (2021:
the emoluments of each of the individuals, two
individuals falling within the band of HK$2,500,001 to
HK$3,000,000 and the other individuals falling within
the band of Nil to HK$1,000,000), for the year, are set
out below:

AEEFRNAEZRESTMMAL
FrEsER (22 —%F:
B FA MBALTHEH
2,500,001 7t % 3,000,000
BILTRHEMATHFHN TES
1,000,000 T (ZE=Z—F : &
A AN LEFHBN T 2,500,001 BT E
3,000,000 7 7T K2 H b A B 7
T48 2 1,000,0007870) Z H M
B

2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& ~ JZ8L K EWEF) 7,775 7,745
Retirement benefits scheme contributions EK1EF5t 2|70 72 89
7,847 7,834
Save as disclosed above, for the years ended 31 BrEEEEIN  HE_T -

December 2022 and 2021, no other emoluments
had been paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group.

14. DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

FhZFE-_—F+=ZHA=+—H
IEREFE  AEEfER RS
EaFiMATINEMBMESER
MNAZE B SN AR B % 782
B -

EEfEamMEBEz T -_—_F1+=A4
T+ BUEFEZINRERE (=T
Z—F )
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—#+-_A=+—HILEE

15. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$10,329,000
(2021: loss of approximately HK$36,846,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,010,605,000 (2021: 1,010,605,000) in issue during the
year.

Diluted loss per share

The effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-—_F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% - BERRE
Plant and Furniture Motor Office
machinery  and fixtures vehicles  Decoration  equipment
BEREH  HAR%E AE g9 BOERA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL TEL TEL TEL
Cost ﬁi?!i
At 1 January 2021 W_E--%-7-H 64,250 1,743 10,335 6,044 5613 87,985
Addltions AE 56 68 - 718 60 902
Disposal e 9 - - - - )
Exchange differences EfZEZ 285 - 12 36 137 470
At 31 December 2021 \:%:*E%‘)%W*E&
and 1 January 2022 R-E--F-F-H 64,582 1,811 10,347 6,798 5810 89,348
Additions NE 2,538 - 2,192 10 121 4,861
Disposal e - - (1,688) - - (1,688)
Deregistration of subsidiaries  isaM B2 Al - - - - (4,974 (4,974
Exchange differences EizE (854) - (46) (107) 30 (o77)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+-R=1-H 66,266 1,811 10,805 6,701 987 86,570

Accumulated depreciation ~ EififE

At 1 January 2021 R-B-_—%-A-H 49,163 1,677 9,99 4,956 3,988 69,774
Charge forthe year Ehx 3072 27 148 o1 640 5,064
Disposal HE ) - - - - )
Exchange differences EiER 80 - 6 11 108 205
At 31 December 2021 Eﬁf:—ﬁ-‘ﬂ%—ﬁ&

and 1 January 2022 RZE-F-F-H 53,209 1,704 10,144 5,244 4,736 75,037
Charge for the year ERTH 4,057 30 33 346 613 5,369
Disposal e - - (1,688) - - (1,688)
Deregistration of subsidiaries (A B R Al - - - - (4,668) (4,668)
Exchange differences ErzZ (329) - (23) (48) 57 (343)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—E+-F=1-H 56,937 1,734 8,756 5,542 738 13,707
Net book value BERE
At 31 December 2022 RZE--F+-A=1-A 9,329 n 2,049 1,159 249 12,863
At 31 December 2021 RZE--5+-f=1-A 11,373 107 203 1,554 1,074 14,311
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

17. HERERAEEE

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Disclosures of lease-related items:

HEMERIAE 2 I -

2022 2021
—E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THIT
At 31 December: R+=-—HA=+—8:
Land and buildings T REEF
- Offices /N 7,598 8,486
— Warehouse - BfE 4,886 2,231
12,484 10,717
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, AEBHEABEERNKBRBASREZ
of the Group’s lease liabilities is as follows: FEIER DT
Within one year —FE X 4,862 3,934
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FERFRFE
(BIEERME) 5,696 3,880
After fifth years FRE 6,148 7,408
16,706 15,222
Year ended 31 December: BZ+=-H=1+—H
IEFE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEETEE R
Land and buildings T REEF
- Offices N 2,228 1,863
— Warehouse - BfE 2,713 2112
4,941 3,975
Lease interests HEFR B 660 606
Expenses related to short-term leases HEAERBR R 166 241
Additions to right-of-use assets RNEFREEE 7,194 3,229
Total cash outflow for leases HMERS R TR 5,395 4,330
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+_A=+—HILEE

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. HERFEAREE (&)
(Continued)
The Group leases various land and buildings. Lease AEBHEETIHEETF - HEWHR
agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 20 —fRETE A2 E204F - FHEGERIIE
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis BERNEERETE - B8R ETRIGERKL
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. &t - HEBEILMmEINERZRE - B
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and HEBENMFRAEEFEM -
the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
18. GOODWILL 18. B
HK$'0C0
FATT
Cost AR
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R-_E-_—F—H—H-
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —E-—H%+-A=+—H"
—T__F-HA—HRK
—E-__F+-_A=+—H 938
Accumulated impairment losses ZitREEE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZE—_—F—H—8 -
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —E-—%+-A=+—H"
“ECF-A—BR

—E-—F+-A=+—H -

Carrying amount ERE{E

At 31 December 2022 R-_E__F+-_A=+—H 938

At 31 December 2021 RZEBE-_—%+-_A=+—H 938
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, REEF X aRNZERA RS E
at acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that HExT ((REEHER]) - HE_-ZF
are expected to benefit from that business combination. —N\F+ZA=T—HLFE ' HED
The carrying amount of goodwill arose from the acquisition FREETIEA B W EMN S in R EEM
of BMEIREREREM KR AR during the year ended 31 HMERRA HENSREZEEXE D
December 2018 and had been allocated to construction & o
segment.
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BT —F+-A=1+—HIEFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined on
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the CGUs
operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for
the next five years with the residual period using the growth
rate of 5% (2021: 5%). This rate does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the
Group’s manufacturing and trading of prefabricated precast
construction components is 18% (2021: 18%)).

19. INVENTORIES

18. & (M)

ReEL BT EeBmRERE
RARBAEREEFEZERAEERE
o RIRBAEREEN T RHRKAERS
BRER - BREALIAAEENE K
ANBRE - REBEEABATH RGER
BE AR R BRE BT 5 8 B R
BENFHELREFENRRESEHETHE
o BEXANREENETEBEL
PrcsbIf eI RS ERE -
BEENBMBAZERBENHOE LS
MHERNHE

REBEERKAFEES BB
FBBERENRSRETRA - FISRH
FRERRAE% (T —4F :5%) o
BT BRAET SN TR AL

AEBEREREEERATEREES
HEHFEAR S RERREAE18% (=F
Z—F 1 18%) o

19. 78

2022 2021

—=—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THIT
Raw materials and consumables R K FOEFES 1,417 1,125
Finished goods RIAK T 1,745 2,015
3,162 3,140
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+_A=+—HILEE

20. ESZ R EABWRIE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2022 2021
—s-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 U GRIE 70,573 46,088
Less: allowance for impairment of B B SRR
trade receivables BB (6,342) (2,002)
Trade receivables, net B S RWGIE - B 64,231 44,086
Retention receivables R FE MR 1,987 1,887
Less: allowance for impairment of B, ARE FEGIE
retention receivables BB 9) (28)
Retention receivables, net REB WA - F58 1,978 1,859
Prepayments and trade deposits FENRIBEERZES 30,050 27,919
Less: allowance for impairment of prepayments & : TENRIB R FIES
and trade deposits VENI=RE L] (26,059) (26,215)
Prepayments and trade deposits, net (note) FENREMR TS
FEE (M) 3,991 1,704
Other deposits and receivables, net Hitniz e R EIKGRIE
pEiEE] 1,121 2,897
71,321 50,546

Note: Included in the prepayments and trade deposits of

approximately gross amount of HK$21,547,000 (2021:
HK$21,317,000) (equivalent to RMB19,100,000) as at
31 December 2022 was the prepayment to a supplier for
construction business. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the aforesaid prepayment was fully impaired.

In March 2021, the Group and the supplier have entered
into supplemental agreement dated 16 March 2021
(“Supplemental Agreement”), in which (i) RMB7,000,000
to be refunded from the supplier to the Group by March
2021; (ii) if the Group cannot reach further cooperation
project agreements before 31 August 2021, the amount of
RMB7,000,000 would be refunded to the Group; and (i) if the
Group cannot reach further cooperation project agreements
before 31 December 2021, the amount of RMB12,100,000
would be refunded to the Group.

GG

R—EBE-_—_F+-_/F=+—8"
ERNREERZGESBEBEBIEY
21,547,000 L ( = & = — F:
21,317,000 7o) (B E RN AR &
19,100,0007T) + A —HEEEXEK
HEBIEL Z2EMNRE KT
Fr_FE-—F+-_A=+—H" £
itz FE FRIEE BEURE -

R-T-—F=F KNREBEZERE
BB A-_ZE_—F=A1+/<H
2Hrthz (Hxmal) o Bt
(tEEER T —F= AmAAK
£ B E A R 7,000,0007T : (i)E
REBARR-_E-—FEN\A=1+—
HATEREMAEERE B - ARK
7,000,000 TR E FAEE ;K (ii)
EREBRGER _EBE-_—F+=-A1
=+—BaTEREMAEERE B
A R #12,100,000 7 #5 18 [B] ¥ K &
°

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % #

151



"NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ERe MM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—_F+-A=1+—RHLEFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ESRHEHMEWFIE (8)
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) PEE - (&)
The first partial refund of RMB7,000,000 was received by AEER—_ZE-—F=AEBRE#HR
the Group in March 2021 in accordance with the terms as R PT U EIE E E B RIAR
stated in the Supplemental Agreement. Yet, the second #7,000,0007T ° AT - BEAEAR
partial refund and the final refund of totaling RMB19,100,000 #19,100,000 7T B 28 = F 2 R %K
were both defaulted. Due to the breach of Supplemental REERFIIWHR - BRERMR
Agreement and the unfavourable negotiation result with the eE MR EE M ER S RTH - R
supplier, impairment loss of approximately HK$21,317,000 EREE—E-_—F+=-A=+—H
has been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021. IEFE R EEEX 21,317,000
There was no further development for this prepayment JC  MIREHAR - sZ BN FAREEL
balance during the reporting period. E—TPERE -
The Group allows an average credit period of 45 days to its AEERTEFHNEEN—MRRB468 -
trade customers. The following is ageing analysis of trade REERAHNE S BKFRR BRik D
receivables based on invoice date is as follows: T -
2022 2021
—=E—_= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
0-30 days 0-30 H 27,742 8,120
31-60 days 31-60 H 6,659 6,199
61-90 days 61-90 H 7,106 6,137
91-365 days 91-365 H 13,250 18,451
Over 365 days 838 365 H 9,474 5,179
64,231 44,086
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+_A=+—HILEE

20. EZ R EAEWRE (8)

B PR IRE BB RN

2022 2021
—E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At the beginning of the year F4) 2,002 1,928
Increase in loss allowance for the year N EE BN 4,612 564
Written off for the year F N (4) -
Reversal of loss allowance for the year X B8 5 O] (64) (515)
Exchange differences PERER (204) 25
At the end of the year FR 6,342 2,002

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS
9 to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected credit losses also incorporate
forward looking information.

At 31 December 2022

Weighted average expected
loss rate

Recaivable amount (HKS'000)

Loss allowance (HK$'000)

At 31 December 2021

Weighted average expected
loss rate

Recaivable amount (HKS'000)

Loss allowance (HK$'000)

Over 30 days

Current past due

08 AHEE0A

R-B-ZF+Zf=1-A
MEV SRR
3.0% 0.1%
MlEEE (FAL) 28,563 4,890
EEEE (Thn) 858 4
R-B--F+Zf=1-A
METS SRR
3% 3%
MkEEE (FAr) 8,331 6,088
BiiE (TEn) 250 183

Over 60 days

BHEE60 A

AEERAEBUHEREERFEINRIA
TS IERE B 5 B FRE R
BEHERBRHRAERNEREER -
RETEEMEEER  E5RKFUEE
REAZEERARBELASHAH S
B HHEREERTESRELER -

Over 90 days Over 365 days
past due past due

BHEB0E AHEE 65

past due

01% 2% 32%
6,322 14,195 16,603 70,573
I 235 5,238 6,342

3% 3% 13%
6,670 19,028 5,376 46,088
200 571 798 2,002

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % #

153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR IS M e

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

21. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 21. ROKRREER
As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H " *~&E
the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted RARE [AR®]) SHEMNRITRIR
to approximately HK$6,473,000 (2021: approximately T 46,473,000 T (ZE=—F ¢
HK$381,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is #1381,00087T) - AR K #INE R
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations. PR B YN E ] i1 o
At the end of the reporting period, bank and cash balances REHRR - FOTEKRSEBREEARE
comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank ERFENRSURRIEHAA=EAK
deposits with an original maturity period of three months or VAR Z FEHASRITTE 3R » sSRITAE eI 5
less. Bank balance carried interest at market rates ranging FFZE0.001%E0.625%( — T - —4F :
from 0.001% to 0.625% per annum (2021: 0.001% to 0.001% £0.35%) 5T & °
0.35%).
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. B RHEMENRIE
2022 2021
—E—_= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Trade payables H SN IR 22,774 12,654
Accruals fEtEH 3,359 4,559
Interest payables on borrowings &SRR T B 7,549 4,600
Payables for the acquisition of property, WEEMZE BB K
plant and equipment B FEARUR 1,286 -
Other payables HAbERTFIR 12,524 14,711
47,492 36,524
Note: Payment terms granted by suppliers are 30 days from the MisE - HERE THNFAR RSB AR
invoice date of the relevant purchases. EMEZHAEET30 A -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice
date is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-—_F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

22. B RHEMENE

& 52
T

RIE (&)
RIAE N E H HEARBRE AT

2022 2021

—E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
0-30 days 0-30 H 6,703 3,602
31-60 days 31-60 H 3,737 2,255
61-90 days 61-90 H 3,935 3,013
Over 90 days 83 90 A 8,399 3,884
22,774 12,654

23. BORROWINGS

23. &

2022 2021
—=E—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
=2 FET TETT
Other loan HiER (@) 40,000 40,000
Bonds payables EEEMNE (o) 5,800 5,800
Loan from a director H—XZEE2EXR (c) 29,250 18,450
Bank borrowings RITER () 1,128
76,178 64,250
The borrowings are repayable EERA T AR EE
as follows:
On demand or within one year BB —FRN 46,928 45,800
In the second year B4 - 18,450
In the third year F=F 29,250 -
76,178 64,250
Less: Amount due for settlement  Jg : /A 12 1lﬂ NEEE
within 12 months (shown under  4& B (RR
current liabilities) BE IET iﬁlj) (46,928) (45,800)
Amount due for settlement K12 EABRBEE
after 12 months IA 29,250 18,450
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ERe MM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
E-F S+ _A=t-RALFE

23. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

156 GLORY FL

The other loan was an interest-bearing loan with principal
of HK$40,000,000 (2021: HK$40,000,000). The other loan
was unsecured, interest bearing at 6.75% (2021: 6.75%)
per annum and repayable on 25 November 2023 (2021: 25
November 2022).

As at 31 December 2022, the Company issued a number
of HK$-denominated bonds with an aggregate principal of
HK$5,800,000 (2021: HK$5,800,000) and are unsecured.
At 22 July 2022 and 5 August 2022, the Company entered
into extended agreement for principal HK$5,000,000 and
HK$800,000 respectively in which the repayment period were
extended for 1 year, repayable during the period from July
2023 to August 2023 and the interest rates for the extended
period increased from 9% to 12%.

The loan from a director was an interest-bearing loan with
principal of HK$29,250,000 (2021: HK$18,450,000). The
loan was unsecured, interest bearing at 10% (2021: 10%) per
annum and repayable on 31 March 2025.

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings with
principal of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,128,000) was unsecured, interest bearing at 4.2% per
annum and repayable on 1 July 2023.

AME HOLDINGS LIMITED ERIZERER AT

,f:l:l'.

Wi

(@)

(18)

H b B 3k 2 N4 40,000,000 T (=
T — — 4 : 40,000,000 7T) At E
‘%?ﬂ o Hih B AEIEA - RFH X
6.75% (ZZF=—4F : 6.75%) 5 2
ARZE_=F+—AZ+HABE (=
T-_—F: 2 F+—A=+Hh
MEJ&

RZEZZF+ZA=+—H K2
AIEETT %EIJ,%nﬁ@E%%@ZKﬁ
% /45,800,000 7t (= F ¢
5,800,000 7C) - z%ﬁmfﬁ#ﬁ

::Etﬂ:+:5&;?__iﬂ
AR B - &R2& 5 5 5E5,000,000%
70 & 800,00078 7T 2 AN € 7] 37 iE HA 13
o BERHMER—F - AARZE

TEFLARECZ=FN\ALLH
BEE ERHRHzZMNEHINTE

12% °

—ZEFERBEEER Ao H
429,250,000 ;T (=& = — F ¢
18,450,000/ 7T) ° 2 E AR -
RENEAI0% (ZZE=—F : 10%) &5
BYER_E-_AF=ZR=1+—HE
% °

RZEZZF+=ZRA=+—H - &7
%?ﬁzzviwﬁﬁ%mooo,oooﬁ (1%

FR#)1,128,00087T) 2 A - 1%
EfUT42%d‘E‘Iz§EA;7; Ft
A—HERE -



24,

25.

LEASE LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-—_F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

24. HEEE

Present value of
Lease payments lease payments
REAR REATZRE
2022 2021 2022
—E—— . —g——

—R—— —7—_$ ===

HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tin ThT TR

Within one year —ER 4,862 3,934 4,87 3,425
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F-ERENE (BREEME) 5,696 3,880 4,423 2,524
After five years hFH% 6,148 7,408 4,950 5,817
16,706 15,222

Less: future finance charges B BERERY (3,046) (3,456)
Present value of lease liabilities HEREZHE 13,660 11,766 13,660 11,766
Less: Amount due for settlement W12 EAREISEEE 508

within 12 months (shown under (WrEaREET2))

current liabilities) (4,287) (3,425)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R EAGIHEE S 9,373 8,341

At 31 December 2022, the average effective borrowing rate
was 5.1% (2021: 5%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract
dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are
as follows:

RZZEZZF+=ZA=+—H" ' ¥
BEREENERAES1%(ZTE - —F:
5%) o FIERREHHHET - BitA %
l7¥<*‘“ﬂ?@7’hﬁﬂ|§w o

25. IEIERIEEE
FRELHBRENESIT :

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IEBETE

HK$’000

FH&TT

At 1 January 2021 R-E-_—F—H—H 653

Charged to profit or loss (note 11) RiEER (BT 11) (284)
At 31 December 2021 and RZEBE-—F+-A=+—HK

1 January 2022 —E-—_4—H—H 369

Credited to profit or loss (note 11) T ABE (1) 128

At 31 December 2022 WZE-——F+=-A=+—H 497

At the end of 31 December 2022, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$41,698,000 (2021:
approximately HK$54,328,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

HE-T-_—_F+=-A=+—H &%
B 5 7~ B 3 4 I8 E5 18 49 41,698,000 %8
TT(ZE=—%F : 454,328,000/ T)
AR ICHE T o FR AR IE FI R
AJFER - M ERERIEEHIREE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR IS M e

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

26. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

As at 1 January 2021,
31 December 2021,
1 January 2022 and
31 December 2022

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each:

26. R

Number of
ordinary
shares

HEER
REBE

EERA

AR EE 0.01 T2 B -
RZE_—F—H—8"
—ET—F+-A=+—H"

—E-__F+-A=+—H 2,000,000,000

Ordinary
shares

BEER

HK$’000
TAT

20,000

Issued and fully paid:

As at 1 January 2021,
31 December 2021,
1 January 2022 and
31 December 2022

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each:

Number of
ordinary
shares

EER
BB E

EERITRHE

AALEE 0.01 B2 ZER -

RZZE_—F—H—H"
—E-F+ZA=+—8"

T F—-H—HAK
—E-_F+=-A=+—H 1,010,605,000

Ordinary
shares

EER
HK$’000
THTT

10,106
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-—_F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

27. XARHBRRARREERE

B iR 2=
2022 2021
—E_— —E= - —F

—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET TAT

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE REE 24 69
Right-of-use assets FREEE 362 1,085
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARIZEE 10,578 10,578
10,964 11,732
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables E 5 MK H el IE 630 516
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NG EN 27,095 20,033
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS 4,935 2,637
32,660 23,186
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables BN E A FEFIB 9,006 6,119
Borrowings EE 5,800 5,800
Lease liabilities HEEE 393 757
15,199 12,676
Net current assets RBEEFEE 17,461 10,510
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBASE 28,425 22,242
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Borrowings B 29,250 18,450
Lease liabilities HEaE - 393
29,250 18,843
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) EEFE (825) 3,399
Capital and reserves EXRFEE
Share capital [N 10,106 10,106
Reserve i (10,931) (6,707)
TOTAL (DEFICIT)/EQUITY B (M) s (825) 3,399
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR IS M e

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 27. KPR BER AR R FEEES
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE (#8)
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement (b) REE2H
Share-based
Share payment Special ~ Accumulated
Premium reserve reserve losses Total
WA
RGE  FERfE Rl 2EEE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TAL B B B
(Note g) (Note b)
(iRE) (Bstb)
At 1 January 2021 W-8=-%-f-A 268,953 2,480 30,577 (272,264) 29,746
Loss for the year ENER - - - (36,453) (36,453
At 31 December 2021 R-B--£+-A=t-1 268,953 2480 30,577 (308,717) (6,707)
At1 January 2022 R=E-=F-§-8 268953 2480 05T (308717) (6707
Loss for the year ENER - - - (4,224) (4,224)
At 31 December 2022 R-E--E+-A=1-A 268,953 2,480 30,577 (312,941) (10,931)

Notes MisT -

(@  The share-based payment reserve represents the fair (@  VARRT ZATRIE 2 B R R IR B
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised TN 28 BEAE R A E W PARR 1D B E
share options granted to directors, employees and a RN R TR TER - &
consultant of the Group recognised in accordance with TAEEZES - BB RERARITE
the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share- BRENERSXGETE8ENAFEE -

based payments in note 28 to the financial statements.

(o)  Special reserve represents the difference between the ) FrlFEREEER_-_Z—HFEAN
fair value of the shares of Ultimate Expert acquired AZEAMEEST RN 2 A T{ER
pursuant to the Reorganisation on 8 May 2014 over RNE|E AR EITRGD 2 EE
the nominal value of the Company’s share issued in -

exchange therefore.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, executives,
officers, directors, business consultants, agents, legal and
financial advisers of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 2 August
2014 and refreshed on 2 June 2017 and 8 June 2018,
respectively, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is
limited to 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T__F+-A=t-HALFE

28. BRETE

RNARIBITHERER S (&8 §
M& BR2EE R REIMER) A I HE &)
REBXBEILER - A ERBHEER
BARBRARGMHMBAGINEES (2
BRFEE)  TTHRAE SR/ABE-E
£ EBKER KRB ZERUBKE
M e ZEt8RN T —mENAZBAERK
Rl E—tFXABE_F
—N\FARANBEH ' BRIEZBEUE
&3] BRIEZBARBRTFAMABR

RiEZAE - ME AR L 2 WARTTER
PR B &% Al SR HETRRER
NEMERRRZEBEITRNZ10% ° 1
ER+—EARER - ZAEBULEE
R2EERENERER TRITORD
ReEHE - EAREANARED#ET
Bt 89 0.1% /BFR o ERRSMNR LB E
SRR BRI R A S ERAR
HEAE

BTAREBIESE  (THEBHSIEERR
RSB EA LT 2 BIREAESE L
JERITEEE LA - 1IN - IR
+—EAHREA - EARAREEBR
RSB IEMITES - HEEABEA
BT HEFIIERE - BBRAA Rk
FRMHE01% K BRE (RIBEAQTRN
BB ZRHER) 885,000,000
BT - BRRRAS S RLERFIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ERe MM

For the year ended 31 December 2022

=1

BT —F+-A=1+—HIEFE

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
7 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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REBREN RO EREEMZ AL
TEABRARAINBERERES
BITMEA - R BEAERTTEHI A i
BEERT INR-—EERKFESG B
B2 BB A i sl At 212 B B B AR AT AR
(ABRFEER/E) BLL -

BRETEETHESHET - BTEE
RUATERESE () AR ARG RIRHER
EE R ZBRMETE : () BEEHAR
B2 A AER S B AR ERER T8
AW TE  Ki)BHEBARRF K
EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+_A=+—HILEE

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 28. BRETE (&)
The following tables disclose the movements in the AT RBEE T AFERR A B RES
Company’s number of share options during the years: ENEE
2022 —E-=
Qutstanding at Granted ~ Exercised Lapsed  Qutstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December Vesting Exercisable Exercise Fair value
202 the year the year the year 02 Grantdate  Period period price of option
k3
-F-A t2R=t-A
Hife ERRi i} EMEY it RiRS B8 it TkE EREATE
Former directors
g £
M LiuZhongPing 20164~ 6,200,000 - - - 6,200000 14June2016 14 June 206 15 June 2016 - HKS0.83 HK$0.40
15June 2016 14 June 2026
Byt N IEE ZE-7% 08357 040AT
~ATER ~AtBAE  RATEAZ
i Bt
ARTER ARTRA
6,200,000 - - - 6,200000
2021 =F=—F
Qutstanding at (ranted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December Vesting Exercisable Exercise Fair valug
20 the year the year the year il Grantdate  Period period price of option
il
-5-8 =B
Hife ERRi i} EREA it RiRS BRAA it T§E ERRATE
Former directors
g £
M. LiuZhong Ping 20164 6,200,000 - - - 6200000 Whne206 142016 16 June 2016- HKS083 HKS040
B 06 14 2026
L ey S ST 5k 08T 040ET
AATER AATERE  AATRAE
0 e a3
MATER AATRA
6,200000 - - - 6200000
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a FRRITEERET O INEE DR A
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.45 years B845F (ZZEZ—%F : 445%F) ©

(2021: 4.45 years).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR IS M e

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor

At end of the year 2021, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipt under a non-cancellable operating
lease which falls due with two years.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

20.

RERE AR
ERHBEA

RIZZ—FK  ARERBRREAR
AN ARG ST E A AR &K
HEWALE -

RETTH RS RENF RS ERE
BRI T -

2022 2021
—E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
No later than one year N—FR - 338
- 338

Operating lease receipt represents rental receivable by the
Group for certain of its warehouse. Lease are negotiated in
2 years term. No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental receipts.

At end of the year 2022, the Group had not entered into
non-cancellable operating lease commitments.

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Other than as disclosed transaction and balance
elsewhere in notes 13 and 23 to the consolidated

financial statements, during the year, the Group had no
other related party transactions.

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of the Company’s Directors, who are
also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in note 13.
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30.

REMBWATEREEREETERE
EEOEE - HEHREERR2F -
W E R A S WARTSAEM LB o

RIT-—FR - AEEHEILAA
HEHEEREASE -
BELXS

(@) F7 - BEABIEREMEIZR
DIFFIME Y X B REHI - K
B ESRS -

(b) EEEBABNME

ARmEE (AIAEEI2RER
BAR) WS EMNHE3 -



31. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the
end of the reporting period are as follow:
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AXEMBARRE

AT ARBERRRNRA R EEZME LT
HE

Percentage of Principal
ownership interest/ activities
Place of Issued and voting power and place
incorporation  Paid-up capital Direct  Indirect of operation
s,/
REEADL
AR  ERTREARRE E# B  ITEERREEHE
Ultimate Expert Holdings BVI USD2,000/ 100% - Investment holding
Limited uSD2,000 (2021:100%)
BTERERAR EBELHEE  2,000E7T/ 2,000 %L REER
Drillcut Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000/ - 100% Provision of concrete
HK$5,000,000 (2021:100%) demolition
ERIRERAR 0 5,000,000 7T,/ RECERLIRERS
5,000,000 7T
PRLIMEEBRER PRC RMB500,000/ - - Dormant
AR A8 (note 1) RMB500,000 (2021: 51%)
SALHMEEB R H AR 500,000 7,/ i
BRAE (M 1) AR 500,000 7T
BN EREREM R PRC RMB43,000,000/ - 61% Manufacturing
BRA7)(note 2) RMB12,138,000 (2021: 61%) and trading of
prefabricated
precast
construction
components
BMEmBREM R hE AR 43,000,000 7T,/ HEREERRA
BRAR (ME2) AR 12,138,000 7T BRBREAEN
Notes: BiisE -
1. The Company establised in the PRC are registered as limited 1. RZRARRFEKY - BEREFENERE
liability companies under the PRC law. EMAERAR -
2. The Company is a sino-foreign owned enterprise established 2. HARA—HRFBRKLZZFIEGE

in the PRC.

-
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31. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group.
The summarised financial information represents amounts
before inter-company eliminations.

31. ARRFENMBARRE ()

TRETEASENSHEE ékz#
yepE ([FRIERER ) 2B A
HER - UBEEREZEETA TFEﬁfT
HHATZ BH ©

2022 2021
—E_C “E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TiEx TAn
Principal place of business/country of incorporation PRC PRC
TEEEY /AR IER t HE
% of ownersh|p in erests/votmg ngh s held by NCI 49% 9%
FERER SRR/ RER %
At 31 December: WtZB=1+-H:
Non-current assets FRELE - 764 11,936 14,507
Current assets REHEE - 2,244 43,338 31411
Current liabilties nEaE - (16,163) (36,043) (26,282)
Non-current liabilties ERBRE - - (6,233) (7,029
Net assets EEFE - (13,155) 12,998 12,613
Accumulated NCI e I - (6,446) 5,069 4919
Year ended 31 December: BET-R=1-HLEE:
Revenue ey - - 49,156 42,829
Profit/{loss) for the year ERER/ (BR) 14,522 (1278) 1,421 742
Total comprehensive incomey/(loss) 3@4&)\/ (BR) a8 14,443 (1614) 386 1,069
Profi/loss) llocated to NCI AEEHEREL ST, (B 7,116 (626) 554 289
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating BEEY (FA) /FMEHETE
activities (36) 7 404 (1,514)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing RETHHNE/ () 25458
activities 25 - (691) (36)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BEEY (FR) /HELREFE
activiies (2,230) - 931 (199)
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes MNEFIREH T2 = - (49) 30
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRRESEMFE (B))
cash equivalents /B (2,241) 7 595 (1,719
Notes: MizE -
1. The Company is deregistered during the year ended 31 1. HEZE- S+ -A=+—ALLF
December 2022. B AR B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32. HERERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing METHEEEECEH
activities
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities TIERASERNFAREGSELER
arising from financing activities during the year: (W

Interest payable
(included in trade Lease
and other payable)  liabilities  Borrowings

EANE

(FFABZRE
fuEfsE) RERR X At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT BT TAT T
At 1 January 2021 R-E--E-8-H 2,059 12,066 64,250 78,375
Changes in cash flows Benssy
- Operating activities -E2EY - (606) - (606)
- Financing activities -BEEY (2,700) (3,724) - (6,424)
Non-cash changes FRLE
- Finance costs - BENA 5,041 606 - 5,847
- Additions -AE - 3,228 - 3,228
- Exchange differences -EiEE - 196 - 196
At 31 December 2021 RoE--F4+-A=+-HK
and 1 January 2022 ZE--F-A-H 4,600 11,766 64,250 80,616
Changes in cash flows Bengs
- Operating activities -BEEY - (660) - (660)
- Financing activities -BAEY (2,803) (4,735) 11,963 4,425
Non-cash changes R E
- Finance costs -BANK 5,752 660 - 6,412
- Additions -AE - 7,194 - 7,194
- Exchange differences -EREE - (565) (35) (600)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—E+-fA=+-H 7,549 13,660 76,178 97,387
33. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 33. #LEREIKERE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and SEeRN _E_=F=ZA-F+HILE
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March MRS M4T B BTG HREk -
2023.
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FINANCIAL
SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the — 7Zx
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the B EHE

HR) U

audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report, is
as follows:

BB &

SERNBTRhEMRFEzFEREER
E (WEBERFR CERGAUH
T

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E_C —E-— —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Tz THL THT THT THT
Revenue WA 118,533 98,970 80,876 93,341 133,631
Cost of sales HERA (83,142) (74,304) (7,531)  (66,237)  (105,088)
Gross profit EF 35,391 24,646 23,345 27,104 28,543
Other income and other EAREMER - 55
gains or losses, net 8,549 1,911 5,373 (1,349) (35,049
Administrative and THREMEERS
other operating expenses (40,551) (58,156) (39,564) (69,615) (189,911)
Operating profit/(loss) BERA/ (B8) 3,389 (31,599) (10,846) (43,860) (196,417)
Finance costs BENA (6,412) (5,847) (5,156) (4,026) (3,000)
Loss before income tax BETERRIER (3,023) (37,446) (16,002) (47,886) (199,417)
Income tax credit/(expenses)  Fi{EFiiE%,/ (Fix) 364 262 (185) (400) (164)
Loss for the year ERER (2,659) (37,184) (16,187)  (48,286)  (199,581)
Attributable to: JEA -
Owners of the Company KARERA (10,329) (36,846) (15,250) (44,411) (194,804)
Non-controlling interests TR 7,670 (338) (937) (3,875) 4,777)
(2,659) (37,184) (16,187) (48,286  (199,581)
Asset and liabilities BEREE
Total assets mEE 137,022 116,779 144,045 138,738 161,478
Total liabilties BaE (137,847)  (113,380) (104,193  (83,899) (57,342)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) / BEHE (825) 3,399 39,852 54,839 104,136
Attributable to: JEA -
Owners of the Company KAFEBA (1,749) 9,194 45,234 59,162 104,197
Non-controlling interests IR 924 (5,795) (5,382) (4,323) 61)
(825) 3,399 39,852 54,839 104,136
The financial summary does not form part of the audited AN BHEW TEKLIRE M BHRET—BH ©

consolidated financial statements.
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